10.

11.

12.

13.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING AGENDA
FEBRUARY 3, 2026 7:00PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2"? FLOOR
MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND IS HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE
CITY MEETINGS CAN BE WATCHED LIVE OR RECORDED
ON THE CITY OF BERLIN YOUTUBE PAGE @CITYOFBERLIN5623

Call to order/Roll Call
Seatl Virtual Attendees (if necessary)

General Public Comments., Registration card required (focated at podium in Council Chambers).
Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per registrant,

Approval of Minutes. RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes from the December 2, 2025
Committee of the Whole meeting,

Consider adding the recital of the Pledge of Alegiance at Committee of the Whole and City
Council meetings. RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as appropriate.

123 S. Pearl Street loading/unloading zone. RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as
appropriate.

Undertake updating of City of Berlin Employee Handbook. RECOMMENDATION: Discussion
and action as appropriate.

2026 Budget Amendment and recognition of capital funds to be taken from reserves for 2024 and
2025. RECOMMENDATION: Move $114,000 ($38,000 for each year) from reserves to capital
for squad car purchase and taser purchase. Discussion and action as appropriate.

Consider amending Charter Ordinance to allow At Large representation of the City Council.
RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as appropriate.

Request for Proposals for the Future of the Berlin Aquatic Cenier. RECOMMENDATION:
Discussion and action as appropriate.

Motion to go into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85 (1) (¢} Considering
employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public
employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibilily.
(Performance evaluation of City Administrator).

Reconvene into open session and take action as appropriate from closed session discussion.

Adjourn.

Note: fn adherence to the City of Berlin Public Meeting Participation Policy, public participation will be allowed under each
agenda item at the discretion of the presiding officer, with the exception of the Consent Agenda. Attendees must register their
intention to participate on either a general comments section or a specific agenda item prior to the meeting by filling out a
Registration Card, which can be obtained from the Internet, City Clerk’s office or in the City Hall Council Chambers at the
podium. Registration Cards showld be turned in prior 1o the meeting lo either the presiding officer or City Clerk.

Please nofe, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of the disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request services, contact the municipal Clerk at 920-361-5400.

Note: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental badies of the municipality may be
in attendance in the above stated meeling to gather information: no action will be taken by any other governmental body except
by the governing body notified above.




COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 2, 2025 7:00PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2"° FLOOR

Call to order/Roll Call- Mayor Burgess called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. Alderpersons
Boeck, Hill, Nigbor, Przybyl, Sorenson, and Stobbe were present, Staff present were City
Administrator, Jessi Balcom; Deputy-Clerk Treasurer, Debra Thiel, Senior Center and
Recreation Facilities Director, Susan Kiener.

Seat Virtual Attendees - None

General Public Comments — Nore.

Approval of Minutes. Alderperson Hill madgz a:H -minutes from the November
4, 2025 Committee of the Whole meeting,. _wzrh a second byAlderper‘s_ rzybyl. Motion carried,

Mayoral Proclamatlon for Farmers & Merchants Bank’s 85“‘-l_i_mnwersaty= dayor Burgess read
¢ Anniversary, Alderpe}"son Przybyl made
hants Bank’s 85" Anniversary, with a

z confi rmed zf hrred shoth he and hzs Jfather would serve
the City of Berlin: feipa, - No representative of Dempsey Law Firm was
present, :

amendment may be needed in January 2026 as the November and December expendzrures have
not been accounted for yet. Balcom confirmed the amount recently borrowed was to cover 2026
spending. The current amendment applies to the 2025 budget, and the City would use reserve
Sunds to cover 2025 over expenditures. Alderperson Przybyl made a motion to recommend
approval of the 2025 Budget Amendments to the Common Council, with a second by Alderperson
Stobbe. Voice vote carried.

Service Provider Agreement between the County of Green Lake and Berlin Emergency Medical
Service. City Adminisirator Balcom explained that the EMS Department requested to move from
General Status to Protected Status under WRS, suggested the EMS director move off the regular




I0.

11

12,

13.

14.

15.

24-hour rotation, and hire an additional paramedic. Alderperson Nighor made a motion to
recommend to the Common Council to authorize City Administrator to sign the agreement,
Sfunding authorized for entire budget request of $2,120,000 by County for EMS services, with a
second by Alderperson Przybyl. Voice vote carried.

2026 Betlin Senior Center Agreement with Green Lake County for the Berlin Senior Center Meal
Site. City Administrator Balcom explained that the City has been working with the County for
many years, with the current bid going through 2026. Currently the County reimburses the Cily
at a rate of $6.70 per meal. Susan Kiener, Senior Center and Recreation Facilities Director,
confirmed the seniors love the meals curvently being pr d. Alderperson Hill made a motion
to recommend to the Common Council authorizing the City Administrator to sign the 2026 Berlin
Senior Center Agreement on behalf of the City, with: as cond. by Alderperson Sorenson. Voice
vote carried.

2026 Transportation Services Agreement w Green Lake County Czty Administrator Balcom
explained this is an annual contract the Coumfy gives to allow those that qualify to get rides.
Susan Kiener, Senior Center and Recreation Facilities Director, confirmed rides can go outside
of the City of Berlin, with Appleton being the furthest, She added this program provides meals on
wheels and take seniors to medical g, poznfments £H shopping, and hair appointments. It
runs weekdays from 8 AM to 4 P. erson Przybyl made a motion to recommend to the
Common Council authomzmg the ( _ rhe 2026 Transportation Services

ording to the municipal code, most events can
New events Council review. Only events with

wo reas 15-for an amena’ment Jirst to add the anticipated recyclmg Jee to the 2026 tax bzll and
second to make changes as equired by the State. Alderperson Hill made a motion to recommend
to Common Council to app Ove amendments to the Municipal Code Chapter 54 Waste and
Recycling to bring the code into compliance with DNR requirements and allow a Recycling fee to
be placed on future tax-bills, following the ordinance being sent fo the DNR for review, with a
second by Alderperson Przybyl. Voice vote carried.

2026 Standardized Special Assessment Schedule. City Administrator Baleom explained this is an
annual occurrence and any questions could be taken back to the City Engineer. Alderperson
Stobbe made a motion to recommend to the Common Council to accept and approve the City
Engineer’s recommendation on the updated 2026 Standardized Special Assessment Schedule,
with a second by Alderperson Sorenson. Voice vote carried.

Amend the City of Berlin Building & Zoning Fee Schedule. City Administrator confirmed the
only change was to the residential and commercial windows and doors. Alderperson Stobbe
made a motion 1o recommend to the Common Council approval of the amended City of Berlin




16.

17.

18.

19.

Building & Zoning Fee Scheduled as recommended by the City of Berlin Building Inspector, with
a second by Alderperson Przybyl. Voice vole carried.

Tax Increment District #17 vacant lot development incentive program. City Administrator
explained the Council’s interest in an incentive program for single family and duplex homes
within TID 17. Balcom explained that the Council approved TID 17 in 2025, however it also has
1o go through the State approval process as well and anticipates approval in the first quarter of
2026. Balcom presented a template of a development agreement to be used with developers
looking to building a single family or duplex home on a single{ot. Balcom explained a separate
development agreement would be made with developers:looking to build on multiple lots, similar
to what was done with developers in TID 16. This program ould allow up to 310, 000 or 50% of
the increment generated, whichever is less, over a

build. Balcom explained the City Attorney sug; Xy

the potential incentive. Discussion to leave't
Alderperson Przybyl made a malzon ta recon

pursuant to Wzs Stats 19.85 (] ) (e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchase of pubfzc
properties, the investing.of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. Consideration of Candidates and
Terms and Conditions of To Be Appointed City Municipal Court Attorney Contract, with a second
by Alderperson Sorenson. Roll call vote carried (6 ayes: Boeck, Hill, Nigbor, Przybyl, Sorenson,
and Stobbe,; 0 nay; 0 absent). Closed session commenced at 8:10PM.

Reconvene into open session and take action as appropriate from closed session discussion.
Alderperson Hill made a motion to reconvene into open session with a second by Alderperson
Przybyl. Roll call vote carried (6 ayes: Boeck, Hill, Nighor, Przybyl, Sorenson, and Stobbe; ()
nay,; 0 absent). Open session reconvened at 8:36PM.

Alderperson Hill made a motion to recommend to Common Council approval of the proposal of




Dretske Law Office to provide Municipal Court Attorney services and direct City Adminisirator
to negotiate terms consistent with the closed session discussion, to bring Sforward to council, with
a second by Alderperson Sorenson. Voice vote carried.

20. Adjourn. Alderperson Hill made a motion to adjourn, with a second by Alderperson Nigbor.

Voice vote carried. Meeting adjourned at 8:37PM,

Respectfully submitted by,
Brittani Majeskie, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING

STAFF REPORT
TO: Common Council
FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator
AGENDA ITEM: Pledge of Allegiance at COTW and CC Meetings
MEETING DATE: February 3, 2026
BACKGROUND

The Mayor plans to initiate the saying of the Pledge of Allegiance at meetings of the City Council. The
“Pledge of Allegiance” will be added to agendas following the seating of virtual attendees and prior to

general public comments.

A sample Committee of the Whole agenda and sample City Council meeting agenda are attached for
YOur review.




COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
DATE AT 7PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2ND FLOOR
MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC & CITY HALL IS HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE
CITY MEETINGS CAN BE WATCHED LIVE OR RECORDED
ON THE CITY OF BERLIN YOUTUBE PAGE @CITYOFBERLIN5623

1. Call to order/Roll Call

2. Seat Virtual Attendees (if necessary)

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. General Public Comments. Registration card required (located at podium in Council

Chambers). Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per registrant.

CONSENT AGENDA: The Consent Agenda contains items which staff considers to be routine
and have already been discussed and recommended by a committee, board or commission at a
previous meeting. Staff recommends that Council act on all of these items on a single roll call
vote. If any member of Council wishes to have any item removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed, the Council member may request that item be removed from the Consent Agenda
prior to the adoption.

5. Waive the reading of ordinances and resolutions.

6. Accept and place on file reports from the City Clerk, Treasurer, and Building Inspector.
7. Approve payment of bills.

8. Approve minutes.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

9. Item for Review.
10. Item for Review.

11. Old Business (To be used to request items of old business be put on a future agenda for
further discussion or action; or used to make a motion for reconsideration of an item from the
current meeting or immediately previous meeting; or to make a motion to take items off the
table which were laid on the table only during the current meeting.)

12. New Business (To be used to request items of new business be put on a future agenda)

13. Adjourn.

Note: In adherence to the City of Berlin Public Meeting Participation Policy, public participation will be allowed under each
agenda item at the discretion of the presiding officer, with the exception of the Consent Agenda. Attendees must register their
intention lo participate on either a general comments section or a specific agenda item prior to the meeting by filling out a
Registration Card, which can be obtained from the Internet, City Clerk's office or in the City Hall Council Chambers at the
podium. Registration Cards should be turned in prior to the meeting to either the presiding officer or City Clerk.

Please note, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made fo accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request services, contact the municipal Clerk at 920-361-5400.

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality
may be in attendance in the above stated meeting lo gather information; no action will be taken by any other
governmental body except by the governing body noticed above.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING AGENDA
DATE 7:00PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2"° FLOOR
MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND IS HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE
CITY MEETINGS CAN BE WATCHED LIVE OR RECORDED
ON THE CITY OF BERLIN YOUTUBE PAGE @CITYOFBERLIN5623

1. Call to order/Roll Call

2. Seat Virtual Attendees (if necessary)

B: Pledge of Allegiance

4, General Public Comments. Registration card required (located at podium in Council Chambers).

Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per registrant.

5. Approval of Minutes. RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes
6. Item for Review.

% Item for Review.

8. Adjourn.

Note: In adherence to the City of Berlin Public Meeting Participation Policy, public participation will be allowed under each
agenda item at the discretion of the presiding officer, with the exception of the Consent Agenda. Attendees must register their
intention to participate on either a general comments section or a specific agenda item prior to the meeting by filling out a
Registration Card, which can be obtained from the Internet, City Clerk's office or in the City Hall Council Chambers at the
podium. Registration Cards should be turned in prior to the meeting to either the presiding officer or City Clerk.

Please note, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of the disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request services, contact the municipal Clerk at 920-361-5400.

Note: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be
in attendance in the above stated meeting to gather information: no action will be taken by any other governmental body except
by the governing body notified above.



DATE: 1/27/2026

TO: Committee Of The Whole

FROM: Scott Zabel

RE: LOADING ZONE AT 123 5. PEARL 5T.

BACKGROUND: In 2019 American House {at that time) requested that two parking spaces in front of the
focation be used specifically as a loading and unloading zone for ambulance and transport services. The
property has since become vacant, and the loading/unloading zone serves no purpose. Staff is asking
council to allow this zone to be returned to normal parking stails {NO PARKING 2:30 -5:30 AM} not 15
min. parking as they were originally. This will accommodate the businesses on S. Pearl St. with more
parking. Please refer to the map provided for the location of the zone/parking stalls.

RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as appropriate.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion to recommend to the Common Council to approve the removal of the
loading zone at 123 S. Pearl Street and the creation of 2 regular on-street parking spaces.




DATE: 4/24/2019
TO: Mayor and Committee of the Whole

FROM: Scott Zabel

RE: Request for designated parking in front of the American House at 123 S. Pear| St.

BACKGROUND: At the April COTW meeting council directed staff to research options to provide
designated parking in front of the American House at 123 S. Pearl St. Attorney Chier determined that
Section 70-481 of the Code under Loading Zones is the appropriate designation to aliow emergency and
other vehicles to park for the purpose of loading and unloading passengers in front of the American
House. Attorney Chier also stated that this would require an ordinance change. After further discussion
our suggestion would be to utilize the two stalls that are currently 15 Min. parking, for the purpose of
loading and unloading passengers. This would allow emergency vehicles to enter and exit the loading
zone easier eliminating the need to parallel park. The two spaces would be combined into one loading
zone area with the appropriate pavement marking and a sign posted at the south end of the zone
designating it a PASSENGER LOADING AND UNLOADING ZONE ONLY. The anticipated cost to make the
changes would be around $200.00 to the responsible party.

RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as appropriate.




Time: 8:41:25 AM
Date: 5/15/2019

=
oy
3
3
O
£
o
~I
=
o]
B
O

@
c
(=]
N
=)

=
=
&
L)
@
@
5
o
I

i c
@
0

=
@
E
<

Counly

Green Lake

$

<

= 40 feet

1inch

Geographic Information System (GIS)

https://gis.co.green-lake.wi.us/




PART Ii - CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 70 - TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES
ARTICLE V1. - TRAFFIC SCHEDULES
DIVISION 7. LOADING ZONES

DIVISION 7. LOADING ZONES

Sec. 70-481. Established.

{a) The common council, upon recommendation of the committee of the whole, shall establish the necessary
loading zones within the city. Such areas shall be established and/or removed by majority vote of the
common council, upon recommendation of the committee of the whole.

(b}  All areas designated as loading zones within the city shall be marked by official traffic signs.

{Code 1989, § 10-1-36)

Secs. 70-482—70-500. Reserved.

Berlin, Wisconsin, Code of Ordinances Created: 2025-07-24 @9:26:28 [EST]
{Supp. No. 35)

Page lof 1




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING

STAFF REPORT
TO: Common Council
FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator
AGENDA ITEM: Updating the Employee Handhook
MEETING DATE: February 3, 2026
BACKGROUND

Enclosed please find the January 9, 2018 version of the Employee Handbook. At this time, | believe this
is the most current {in use) version of the Employee Handbook. From conversations with staff and
others, it appears that the process of updating the Handbook has been discussed many times and certain
portions of the manual have raised questions and concerns over the years. Due to the age of the current
document and the ever-changing world of employment law and employee relations, | think it is
important the Handbook be reviewed and updated if needed. The Department Heads and | plan to
tackle a few segments at a time, making our way through the entire document. As such, | am looking for
guidance as to the Council's preference for undertaking this endeavor.

Would the Council prefer that staff bring portions of the Handbook to Council on a regular basis and
review the document in smaller pieces, or have staff compile all recommendations for the entire
handbook and bring the full version to the Council at once?




WIS __ ._ I

| On the Fox

CITY OF BERLIN
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK
Updated: Jan 9, 2018




TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION. ..o tevieresresrsssssrassesssssssasessiessssssss snrett s bheds hsskssbatssssssssnssnsssssssssssasasssss iestonsassas santbbetssussasas 4
City of Berlin Employment Policy Maling ..o 4
Employment t WL ....oc it et s 4

GENERAL EMPLOYMENT ......cooniiimiesmiisiisisiimsmsitssimssmmiimisisias sttt oas s sdsatsstssnasssssssonasonss 5
EMpIoyee ClassifiCatiONS .....civureireicerrrreesisrcre e sissiiie b is b e rs s st e b es et e b st a s es s e st st e s 5
TUTHOIIS v vetretieriiteere e eeseeerseenaesaberatassaseeseet e eseesssie b e sae e sa s s aR s am e R R S eE SRR S AR SRR AR e S SR n TSRS oAb e SRt s E s e R b e b e s b e e e arn s 6
Employment 0f REIBHVES ... c.cu et e s st 6
EMPLOYee RECOTAS .ov ittt et s b n bbb bbb 6
Termination, Resignation and DHSCHAIER ...t 6
Residency REGUIFEIIENES .....cocotciiriiiiiritiis ittt b e bbb £t s s b s 7
TACENSES B CortiICAIONS 11ivvivetvavrriesest et seereteresresienrare e et i e b e b bt 12 hsE s s b ek b e b E e E e b bs e b e P e R R e R LT b A Te 12 on et s 7
L0SS OF DHAVITE PIIVIIEEES 1.evveveetireeeeir et e s ome e s bi et bt st b sk e b s b e b e b e s an s e s et 8
Reference/Backgrotind CRECKS ..o it bttt it sts s st b s ssabs b s st san e sn s s nidsaeanas 8
Job Vacancies 8 RECIUTTIENT . ....cv e ereieirinseorisresrrens e sssmes sttt s see e s srabar e sbssbs s rsatassssesasragagssesesieaas 8

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ....ccvctrcsrniiinirasarssssreemsast sossssssssessisstsssnsssssassnsas st sassssassisnssrestssssns asiassasasassssssass 10
IMEAICAL TSUIAIICE ... euvivieviesrereerserseeeeieeisee st seesbasabestssenreas e arseresem e e rassassan e s rn s n e s asseen e s ek s et s anbsets e sanrannnnss 10
Post-Retirement Health Insurance Benefifs ..o 10
COBRA .ottt ettt te s es e er ettt teata st es b et ab e b e s e se s 1E 2t £ e he b e abeab et ersemee e er e e S hee e d e b S LR b L LB L ek sk ppaae S as e s a e et e ees I
LLIfE TEESUTAIICE 11vvvvvreveeeeseisatetsectessaaessseass e sseesareerbeesssnsasenrassameesresroede b b s e a4 d 1 Ab e b b r s et e tR s e st s aR e e ea e e n b e nr e s nras il
Retirement SAVINES PIAN ..o er s s s v e s s il
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) ..ot 12
SETVICE AWALUS ..oootitiiticticiase s e e e e e s s saesesern s e e e e e e e e eeetr e m b s e e ta s sa s e e s e s s e be e R e s ar et s ek b e e R e s g e g e an s e n e e i2
WOrker’s COMPENSALION -..c.vevivirictiiniiiisi e s et b et bbbt i2
TLAVEE S FXPENSES .ot eriaiiirieratnit it st ia bbb bbb bR e R bbb 12

COMPENSATION & WORK SCHEDULE crovsinsinesnesnsnsmsissnosesamsissssssssaisassessssssrssnasiassssssassassssssss 13
Outside BMPLOYIMEIE ..e...eeerirrrererieeremieeiieesistsesisisis et saissbs a8 s 88 SR a bbbt eb s nn s 13
AHendance & PUNCHIAIIEY .ovvcvrvrr e e bbb s e ber i es 13
BBEEAKS oot eoee et oot e it it istse e s e e eeeteetseesaeete et e eaae et e ran s e Tt e ebe R e ataerasre e br LR e ea e bie S i RL et e e e e nr e e r e e e aa A e e 13
General Pay INTOrmMAtion ... ... .. e ek b s i4
OIVETEIINIC 1..ovveeieceeieeeeeeensseaseeseeseeaeebsbeate st sessesseraes s e s b et abe et e st emesre s e mn s e e e smsesees s LE bR E s b bbb samaA et e r et e arena s et ane 14
COMPENSAIOTY THITEC .. -.veverrientescniatiesconasban e e sb s sass e s et sa s o8 ees e b S be bbb A h A b4 a SRS aE b e bbb e b m ket 14
Pay SCHEUIE ....c.veveeerirrrceciti it bbb 5
Performance Reviews and Salary INCreases. ... e 15
THITIE RECOTAS c1virvvrreeseeceetecriettasiercreraseasreneresarasentnessennaneenaesaneeesbibesin bt bt s ebbes iR R AT SR s Tes R e abs et e nR e te s r e s s r e s e e s natas 5
AV OEK HOUES .. .1 vvesrevetectresten e srareereresee st saneseeasessasanee e e em b ed e b s s b be s s4s s 48 e b e e R as SR ba TR R SRR T e e e P AT R 0T nreem e e g as et et 15

VACATION, HOLIDAYS & LEAVES ...cccimmnnmisissioisiiisessstsmsassatossststsatstessassmssss sassssssssssses 16
V2T T L) s DRSPS O U OO OO O OO STOUPUOTO AU IRION 16
o T <Y <SOSR PO OO OrOROU OO U U PO OSOPTRUOTO PP PIP P PPTOT 16
PEISONAL LUBHVE ...ev e iiiieereeiererarsestesiaeeresseeeeensseesssebebbebabsas b e b assebeaesesaeares e eh e e s e e e ba e n s i4 s 1AL e A i b e e b st b e s e s ke s anbeas ¥}
TTOTIAAYS cv.vv et reesecer s es e es s ees e b as e b e e b b e b S b 4SS bR 4T3 A SRS bbb e 18
BETCAVEITIEINE LEAVE iiiiiiiiirrinsirtarrarireees e sieeseseasarasresrres e ser s s iaEa bt b es1a s Ta Rt eore a4 haS e b e bLs s eae e s b e e et e e s n s b s ann e 18
IVHLEATY LBAVE. c..vveverirrensencreeeseecsatats st st sas e e bbb s s bbb R e e s R s bbb 5 ab b e bbb R e b e bt 19
TUEY DL .ottt et b b e e b b SRS g s 1A eh s 4 e A2 £ e SRS bbb bR a e R 19
Time Off From Work In Connection With Court Cases....uu oot ssssnsisersssanessssssases 19
THME OFT O VOLE 11eeereeticie ettt tisres e sse e e te st st sre st e e sesrreassmeaesd 1S A bbb e sk bbb T ks R e d e S ae e e e b e n et n b s et e n e e e neas 20




Family & Medical LAV ACh it s s ebe b s s syt esesbaniesbensnane 20

TLEAVES OF ADSEIICE 11iveeiitieieee ettt st e e e s s e s rnb e s e s R ha e e e ee 2o RS e r e ae e e net et s e R e e e n A s R a et ranes 25
ANTEDISCRIEMINATION & HARASSMENT....ccoisiunsinsverssnsmsesssnssorsstrssonsinsnsisssssessssasasesssnsenssansssssase 26
Prohibited Behavior ..o e e et 26
Harassment by NOB-IIPLOYEES «..ooiiiieie ittt bbb s e sk st b s ar s s 26
Complaint Procedure and INVESLZALION .....coeervvreeiciiriiiiiiiiinsie e st eans 26
REEAIIATION 1.vev e vevreetvnrereseermesseseeseasrnee s esr et smessearse e be e b s be b L e b e b L ebs e E s r s R e e bR s T E s E AR e b T e AT a4 e b B e R R RO R T O 4TS0S S e 2 e et s 27
Equal Opportufity POHCY . ..coveeveeecrt ettt se s s e s s 27
Americans W/DISADITIES ACT ..iiirrrirceiaee ettt e et sr e e b 27
CONDUCT STANIDIARIIS c.ecerrereetsiisisnsassssassssssssasssissstasismssnisatsssssss1s34s1 004 14510010008 1107000400080 0 010000 00100 5 0w0n 28
Zero Tolerance for Workplace VIOIENOE ...c..cio ettt s an e 28
WOIKplace SOLCIALION ..ottt bbb b s 28
SIIOKIE POLIOY ..t cteeiecieitistiriss s st st eae et trbe sttt e st see s e sa e e b e b b S b st b4 s 1o a o1 e e e e s e e s e ae s et n e s 28
Progressive DISCIPIIIE ..ouvviiereiecrctsesteseereas e s e e esesseies bbbt a4 s e b sd s e e b b sa e e b e s e bt e s s e s nt s 29
LR =yt Vo<1 T OO SR oYU T TP 29
ETHICAL AND LEGAL BUSINESS PRACTICES 33
COMMPHAICE 1..viveinviereeeieesteiet et et et cems e es b fhen bbb e b bbb s a8 s e s A e R b aE e ne e ke s e e b e n e e R e aE e n b 33
Complying with Laws and Regulations ... i s 33
CORTHEE OF TIECTESE 11 vvieeerrerrsrrarsaeeecesesesestestsessee b enssersie s st enas e st s se s b e b b e R e b e b e b e sR s e R s s s s s s easen £ b st at e e s eba b rns 33
Accounting and Financial REPOTLS ... e siess 33
Employee Privacy and Other Confidential Information ... 33
Giving and Receiving GIiS. ... et in s e st ab e s sr s sne s neansane 34
Drug and ALCORO] POLICY ..ovciiir ettt e s s 34
Dating in the Work PIACE ... s 35
PORIICAL ACHVITY 1o iviiiiticriariieaeiesieiei et ete st s e s s e st res e e e reeee s b b e b ta s sa e va e ke s e nE s s e e b e et s e n e nm e et 35
Company Equipment and Vehicles. ..ot 36
Access to City Buibdings/OfTICes v .vieioriniriereeree et et s et an e estns 36
Handling of and Responsibility of City Credit Credit Cards ... 37
DEESS COAE POLIEY coveereeiteieriereer st s e e s bbbt st s a e bbb B b e bR b e e H bR b e b ab b nt b en 37
Tattoos, Body Art, and Hairstyles PolicIes ... 39
COMPUTER & COMMUNICATION USE POLICY .....ccciminienmnisarmsesreeserssssssssssssssessanceseassassasess 41
TElCPIONE USAZE. ..ocvereueeeacecer ettt s e s b e bR bt d e n e bk sa bbb nb bR e 42
Special Cell Phone/Electronic Device Use POLICY ....covvieiiiiiiinin i 42
PErS0mal ML ... vttt bbb e e b s s 44
EAmAT] USAEE. . cvereeeevrcmictiini i s s b e eSS bR R 44
e oL A T = OO OO O SR OR SOOI PSPPI 44
SOTEWALE POICY 1vvietiititeiart et r ettt e seeem e ne e bbb s 444 e s s A e RS e R e e R et e b e R e e s e e en et nr e r e 44
SAFETY & EMERGENCY ..ooriciinmisisiisisisnisiissosmsismsiiststistestssssrisssmsson bt sssbiats 4000040400800 000 041180080005 45
LN (1O TSR T TR SO T O TP O PO PP PP DIPTSR PRI PR PRPPTPPOR 45
FEEE SATBET oo viitiiei ettt e e d iSRS b bR E £ AR R R RS e 45
EMEIZENCY IMEASUIES 1overeerteerieeteretes et ierenrecsreeesesem st st h bbb bk r s te e e e R e b T et e e ke e e g oot hE b d b 45
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ..corvrererresesrerressessssssssssst sassssssessisassnsstssassst ibsstestsstsseesssnsasssasisssassansasssssssassasnssns 46




INTRODUCTION

CITY OF BERLIN EMPLOYMENT POLICY MAKING

The Common Council and other Boards and Commissions have the authority to approve the personnel
policies as provided for in Wisconsin State Statutes. The City Administrator recommends policy changes
to the appropriate governing body, and is responsible for the effective and efficient administration of all
petsonnel policies, which are adopted by the Common Council. Upon hiring, each employee shall receive
an Employee Handbook and be responsible for the policies and procedures within it. An acknowledgment
form will be signed and placed in the employee's personnel file.

The City of Berlin may, at any time, in its discretion, modify any provisions of this Handbook and make
any decisions it deems necessary for the efficient operations of the City. This Handbook shall not forfeit
or abridge any rights, which the City may have as an employer.

From time to time, supplements to this Handbook will be issued. Employees shall be required to review
these supplements and incorporate them into the original Handbook.

The policies, procedures, rules and regulations set forth in this Handbook shall be applicable to all City of
Berlin employees including sworn and non-sworn personnel, except for volunteers (whether paid a
nominal fee or not) as such volunteers are covered under a separate Volunteer Handbook. They shall take
precedent to any previously adopted work rules with the exception of any policy or procedures
established in an existing and valid Collective Bargaining Agreement or Employment Agreement. In such
an event, the language in the Collective Bargaining Agreement or an Employment Agreement shall be
considered binding. Where such agreements do not address certain areas, this Handbook shall be
effective. Although this Handbook establishes general policies for the City of Berlin, if a departmental
policy or Handbook exists to enhance departmental effectiveness and is more stringent, this Handbook
shall not supplant those departmental rules and regulations.

EMPLOYMENT AT WILL

Unless expressly prescribed by statute or contract, all City employees’ employment is "at will", which
means they may be terminated at any time and for any reason, with or without advance notice and with or
without cause. Employees are also free to quit at any time. Any employment relationship other than a¢
will must be set out in writing and approved and adopted by the Common Council. None of the
statements, policies, procedures, rules or regulations contained in the Handbook constitutes, a guarantee
of employment, or guarantee of any other rights or benefits, or a contract of employment, express or
implied.




GENERAL EMPLOYMENT

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS: Employees at the City of Berlin are either full-time or
part-time. The City may on occasion hire temporary or seasonal employees, who will not generally be
eligible for benefits. Each employee’s supervisor will verify whether that employee is a full-time or part-
time employee, and also whether that employee is exempt or non-exempt. Exempt employees are not
entitled to overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act, while non-exempt employees can qualify for this

pay.

Employee classifications are as follows:

1. Regular: A regular employee is one who is performing the duties of a full or part-time position
within the City.

a.

Full-Time: Employee in a regular position whose normal assigned schedule of hours
totals 2,080 hours or more per year. Full-time Public Safety Employees may be assigned
a shift schedule of 1,945 hours or more per year.

Part-time: Part time employees work fewer than 40 hours per week.

Category 1: Employees working less than twelve hundred 1,200 hours per year,
seasonal, contractual, or temporary employees are not eligible for benefits.

Category 2: Employees working more than twelve hundred 1,200 hours per year but
less than 2,080 hours per year are eligible only for Wisconsin Retirement System
retirement benefits.

Category 3: Employees whose normal assigned schedule of hours totals 2,080 hours
per year are eligible for City benefits as budgeted and approved by the Common
Couneil.

Category Other: The City currently has certain employees who are not Category 3
employees but regularly work schedules at the borderline between Category 2 and
Category 3. These employees have historically been granted the same city benefits
as Category 3 employees, but on a prorated basis. The City does not intend to
continue this practice for newly hired employees, after July 16, 2013, but will allow
all current employees receiving such prorated benefits to remain doing so.

2. Seasonal: An employee who is employed to work on a regular and/or recurring basis during a
specific season or portion of a year.

3. Temporary: A temporary employee is one who is hired for a specific purpose or job for a period
not to exceed four (4) months. This temporary employment may be extended for an additional
four (4) months. The status of a temporary employee may be changed by vote of the Common
Council to that of a regular employee providing there is an opening for a regular, full-time or
part-time job, and the employee meets the job qualifications.

4. Limited term employee: An employee who is hired only for a limited period of time or is an
employee hired under a state or federal grant program, regardless of the length of employment.
Limited-term employees may be full or part time and they are eligible for benefits on the number
of houts worked annually with approval of the Common Council.




UNIONS: The City of Berlin recognizes the union(s) as representatives for those workers who are
unionized. This Handbook does not change any terms or stipulations of any valid and effective collective
bargaining agreement negotiated by a union, subject to all applicable statutes prohibiting collective
bargaining as to certain issues.

EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES: Except as provided below, relatives will not be
permitted to work within the same department in the City of Berlin, and supervisor-employee
relationships shall not be allowed between employees who are relatives. For purposes of this section, the
Water & Sewer Utilities are considered one department.

1. Relatives include an employee’s parent, grandparents, child, spouse, domestic partner, sibling,
cousin, nieces, nephews, in-laws and step relationships.

2. The City of Berlin may hire relatives of employees to work in different departments where there
are no potential problems of supervision, safety, security, morale or potential conflict of interest.

3. Employees who marry or become related will not be permitted to continue to work in the same
department.

4. Exceptions to this policy may be made in the discretion of the applicable hiring authority when
the potential for adverse or discriminatory effects is minimized.

EMPLOYEE RECORDS: Personnel files will be maintained in accordance with City Code.

Employment dates of employees are kept permanently, while payroll records shall be kept for ten (10)
years. All employment records will be maintained as per records retention schedule according to law. The
City Administrator, for non-current employees, may destroy other records, including correspondence, at
hig/her discretion.

It is each employee’s responsibility to notify the City Clerk's department of any changes in name, address,
telephone number, marital status, number of dependents, military service status, beneficiaries or person to
notify in case of an accident.

Employees may be dismissed for misrepresenting any fact on his or her application or in his or her
personnel file.

Personnel records are considered City property. Employees may review and make copies of his or her
records in the City Clerk's offices after giving adequate notice. Employees may also insert written
rebuttals to information in his or her records with which he or she disagrees. Photocopy charges are the
employee’s responsibility.

TERMINATION, RESIGNATION AND DISCHARGE: Unless expressly prescribed
by statute or contract, employment with the City of Berlin is "at will" and may be terminated with or
without cause or notice. Similarly, employees are free to resign at any time. If an employee resigns, the
City of Berlin requests the courtesy of at least two week’s notice. Department heads and top
administrative positions shall be expected to provide 30 days notice. Failure of department heads to give
a 30-day notice and other employees to give a two-week notice will forfeit employee rights to receive a
payout of any benefits.




An employee shall file a written letter of resignation to their department head including a termination
date. Once a resignation has been submitted, it cannot be withdrawn, except upon mutual agreement by
the employee and the depariment head/supervisor.

Any employee who gives notice of termination or is terminated by the City of Berlin shall be paid wages
and vacation accrued to the date of the separation. Accunwlated vacation earned but not taken prior to
termination date and any unused compensatory time shall be paid within fifteen (15) days after
employment termination,

Terminating employees, prior to feaving the premises on their final day, shall be expected to attend an
exit interview/meeting with their Department Head and/or the City Administrator at such
interview/meeting, employees shall be required to turn in all City property in their possession including,
but not limited to, keys, credit cards, safety equipment, and City records.

RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS: Emergency personnel who were employed by the City on
July 1, 2013, but who did not reside within fifteen (15) miles of the City of Berlin jurisdictional
boundaries on that date, are not subject to the terms of this provision unless the employee has since
moved from the residence the employee resided in on said date, whereby the employee shall then be
required to comply with this provision.

Residency requirements for law enforcement, fire department and EMS personnel shall be established by
separate departmental policies, and for law enforcement personnel may also be the subject of a collective
bargaining agreement. Any residency requirements established shall be in compliance with Wis. Stat.
§66.0502(4)(b), and all employees that are subjected to a residency requirement as described herein, or in
such separate departmental policies, are deemed to be either law enforcement, fire or emergency
personnel.

Some personnel, although deemed to be law enforcement, fire or emergency personnel under Wis. Stat.
§66.0502(4)b), such as but not limited to EMS and fire department on-call volunteers and employees,
may not be subjected to residency restrictions because of the on-call response time restrictions already
placed on such volunteers and employees, and because the City has a facility available to house EMS
volunteers and employees while on call. Also, in regard to the EMS, for which there is already a limited
recruitment pool of potential volunteers and employees, the Common Council has determined that
imposing a residency requirement on such EMS volunteers and employees would create an additional
burden on finding available qualified candidates for such positions which would be contrary to the City’s
interests.

All Public Works Department and Water & Sewer Utility employees, and the City Hall Custodian, shall
be considered emergency personnel, and as a condition of employment, shall reside within fifteen (15)
miles of the City of Berlin jurisdictional boundaries. Residency must be established within one year of
the employee’s commencement of employment with the City. The City reserves the right to determine
whether an employee’s living arrangements satisfy the requirements of this provision,

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS: Applicants for a position requiring a license and/or
certification must present valid proof of the same prior to the first assigned starting date. Licenses and
Certifications should be maintained throughout employment at the City. It is the employee's responsibility
to maintain the required licensing and certifications required for his/her job. The employee is responsible
for any cost relating to licensing and/or certification. The City of Berlin retains the right to verify
compliance at any time.




Various City employees are required to maintain a CDL (Commercial Drivers License) or other
certifications, such as a Pool Operator License, Lifeguarding Certification, etc. The City may pay for all
or a portion of the cost relating to obtaining and maintaining these licenses and/or certifications, but doing
so shall not create a continuing obligation on the part of the City. The City may also pay for the cost of
licenses and/or certifications for employees in some departments and not others, as determined at the
discretion of the Department Heads.

LOSS OF DRIVING PRIVILEGES: Employees who drive City vehicles are required to
report to the City, within a reasonable period of time, any loss or reduction of driving privileges due to
driving while impaired or other motor vehicle violations. A loss or reduction of an employee’s driving
privileges, if driving City vehicles is an essential function of the employee’s job, may result in
termination. Also, employees shall not be allowed to drive a City owned vehicle, and may be subject to
termination if driving a City vehicle is an essential job function of the employee, if that employee has
been convicted of three or more moving violations and/or at-fault accidents during the prior two years,
has been convicted of an OWI or DUI violation during the prior year, or is otherwise considered high-risk
for insurance purposes {determined by the City Administrator in consultation with the City’s liability
insurance company). Driving record checks will be made at least annually for regular City drivers and
can be done any time, with or without cause or permission, for any employees driving City vehicles. The
City may also participate in the Wisconsin Department of Transportation Employee Notification program
for CDL drivers.

REFERENCE/BACKGROUND CHECKS: The City of Betlin conducts reference and
background checks on all new employees. Employees who have falsified information on their
employment applications will be disciplined, which could include termination. Applicants who have
provided false information may be eliminated from further consideration for employment.

At times, the City may be contacted for a reference request for information regarding current or former
employees. Any such request whether by telephone or in writing, shall be responded to by the Department
Head or the City Administrator. The City will release only dates of employment and termination,
employee's title or position, and a confirmation of wage or salary.

JOB VACANCIES & RECRUITMENT: Any vacant position shall be examined by the
Department Head and/or the applicable Board or Commission involved. Newly created positions shall be
approved by Council as part of the annual budget process or through specific Council action.
Replacement positions shall be authorized to be filled by the City Administrator, who shall inform the
Council on the intent to hire. If any Council member objects to the hiring, it will be put on an agenda for
discussion,

Job vacancies may be filled through examination, transfer, promotion, reinstatement and demotion. All
positions must be budgeted and approved by the Common Council or applicable Board or Commission.
As vacancies oceur, they will be posted internally as well as externally. Employment advettisements may
be placed in publications, which serve the City’s recruiting area as deemed appropriate by the Common
Council. Application deadlines will be a minimum of seven (7) days from the advertising of the position.

Applications; Application forms shall be proscribed by the City Administrator and shall meet State and
Federal requirements and must be filed through their respective departments, Any application containing
false, deceptive or fraudulent information will be subject to disqualification. If such a candidate is hired,




he/she will be subject to immediate dismissal. Sworn police officers are subject to WISS 62.13. The City
may reject any application for employment and refains full rights to determine the appropriate applicant
for a position. Applications will be kept on file for one year unless state or federal law require otherwise.

Job Selection: The selection process shall assess attributes necessary for job performance and career
potential, which shall maximize reliability, objectivity and validity. Selection devices may include, but
arc not limited to, practical written, oral, physical, psychological testing, and personal interviews. The
Department Head upon consultation with the City Administrator will determine the selection methods to
be used. Prior to the appointing of any position, the City Administrator shall be consulted for
authorization.

Pre-employment Drug Screening: Applicants may be required to pass a pre-employment drug screening
to be eligible for employment with the City of Berlin. ALSO SEE DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY IN
THIS HANDBOOK.




EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The City of Berlin employees are entitled to a wide range of benefits. A number of the benefit programs --
such as Social Security, workers' compensation, state disability and unemployment insurance -- cover all
employees as required by law.

Eligibility for most other benefits depends upon a variety of factors, including employee classification.
See the EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS section of this Handbook to determine benefits eligibility.
Some benefit programs require contributions from employees, and some are fully paid by the City of
Berlin. The City of Berlin reserves the right to add, amend, modify or terminate any employee benefit
plans or programs offered,

MEDICAL INSURANCE: The City of Berlin offers group Health insurance. Copies of the
current medical insurance plan are available in the City Clerk’s office.

The City of Berlin shall always have the sole discretion, as allowed by law, to decide the terms of any
plan, including whether the plan will include any employer contribution to premiums or deductibles.
Proper notice will be given to all employees if a change will be made from a prior policy term. For ali
other eligibility and coverage details, employees shall refer to the plan documents. The City of Berlin also
reserves the right to change the type of plan or terminate any plan, as allowed by Iaw, in its sole
discretion.

COBRA: If an employee’s employment is terminated, that employee’s City’s group health insurance
coverage, if any, will terminate on the last date of that employee’s employment. However, that employece
and that employee’s dependents may have the right to continue or convert coverage as set forth in the
rules of the plan, and as required by law. If an employee is eligible, that employee should receive written
notification of his or her right to continue or convert coverage within statutorily prescribed time limits.
Should an employee have specific questions about this coverage, he or she should contact the City
Administrator.

LIFE INSURANCE.: Employees will receive documents under a separate cover that explain the
life insurance program that the City of Berlin currently provides.

RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN: The City of Berlin participates in the Wisconsin
Retirement System (WRS). All eligible employees shall receive benefits in accordance with state laws and
guidelines.

All full-time employees of the City of Berlin are also entitled to participate in a Deferred Compensation
Plan. This program provides a supplementary retirement benefit by allowing participants to defer a
portion of their annual gross income for retirement. Deferred Compensation contributions are 100%
employee expense. Full copies of these retirement plans are available in the City Clerk's office.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP): The City of Berlin has an Employee
Assistance Program ("EAP"), through a qualified provider. Employees may seek help anonymously for

10




such matters as alcohol or other chemical dependency, family and marital problems, personal and work-
related stress situations and anxiety disorders. Contact the City Administrator for additional information.

SERVICE AWARDS: Permanent employees completing every five years of full or part-time
service shall receive awards in recognition of that length of faithful, continuous service.

WORKIER’S COMPENSATION: The City of Berlin provides statutorily required workers'
compensation insurance. If an employee become ill or injured while at work, he or she is instructed to get
medical attention at once. Employees must also report the details of such illness or injury to his or her
supervisor or City Clerk immediately, if physically able to do so. Employees must complete a report for
every injury, no matter how small, to keep the coverage in force and to get any benefits or other
compensation to which the employee may be entitled.

TRAVEL & EXPENSES: Employees will be reimbursed for all reasonable and necessary
expenses they incur while travelling on City of Berlin business. Employees must record all travel and
business activities on the City's Expense Report Form, including expenditure receipts and submit it fo the
City Clerk's office, within one month of the business activity.

When authorized functions away from the City include one or more meals, the maximum allowable per
diem will be the following amounts for the meals involved: Seven dollars ($7.00) for breakfast, Ten
dollars ($10.00) for lunch, and Fifteen dollars ($15.00) for dinner, or Thirty-two dollars ($32.00) per day
maximum. Meal allowance only applies to the meals not included in the functions registration costs.
Receipts shall not be required for per diem meals allowance.

There is no objection on behalf of the City to a spouse and/or other family members travelling on an
official trip, but the City will not reimburse any expenses attributable to them.

1t is preferred that non-emergency City vehicles be used for City travel, if available. Fuel, repairs, tolls,
parking/garage charges, and other related expenses are reimbursable upon submission of receipts.

The City assumes no responsibility when private vehicles are used for City business. When private
vehicles are used for City business travelling, mileage reimbursement will be based on the current federal
mileage reimbursement rate as set by the IRS. Any private vehicle must have proof of liability insurance
to be used, and the vehicle liability is the employee's responsibility, Mileage determinations will originate
from City Hall to the designated location.

COMPENSATION & WORK SCHEDULE

it




OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT: Because of the City of Berlin's obligations to its citizens, the
City must be aware of any concurrent employment each employee may have to determine whether or not
it presents a potential conflict.

Serving on any public or government board or commission qualifies as employment for purposes of this
policy, regardless of whether such service is compensated.

Before beginning or continuing outside employment, employees are required to obtain written approval of
their supervisor and the City Administrator. Employees must submit written documentation to their
immediate supervisor and the City Administrator detailing the involvement with the other employer. This
documentation should also include a statement of understanding that any duties of outside employment
will not conflict with or oceur during employment hours with the City of Berlin. Failing to obtain prior
approval as described may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Employees who
are on leave of absence, including FMLA leave or Workers' Compensation leave are prohibited from
having outside employment during their leave, unless otherwise allowed by law.

ATTENDANCE & PUNCTUALITY: Every employee is expected to attend work regularly
and repott to work on time. If an employee is unable to report to work on time for any reason, that
employee must telephone his or her supervisor as far in advance as possible. If an employee does not call
in an absence in advance, it will be considered unexcused. Unsatisfactory attendance, including reporting
late or quitting early, may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

BRFEAKS: Any employee working 6 hours or longer in any day is permitted one half hour for lunch,
unless the employee's immediate supervisor specifically authorizes more time. Typically supervisors
grant 1 hour for full time employees, and 1/2 hour for part time employees, but that again is up to the
discretion of the supervisor, depending on the needs of the department. Times during which lunch is to be
taken shall be scheduled with the employee's immediate supervisor in advance for regular full-time
employees, otherwise lunch times shall be decided on a daily basis according to the needs of the
department. Each employee must be conscientious about returning from Iunch on time, out of
consideration for fellow employees who may not be able to leave for their lunches until that employee's
return, notwithstanding the City of Berlin's general policy on tardiness. Skipping lunch hours to make up
time for tardiness, out-of-the-work appointments or leaving early is not permitted.

Coffee breals, time for snacks, or visiting do not count as meal periods but as rest periods. There is no
legal requirement in Wisconsin that an employee be given a rest period, however employees' immediate
supervisors are authorized to provide rest periods for their employees, in their discretion. Therefore, for
those employees who are not provided rest periods, any excessive activities that would otherwise
constitute a rest period may be required to be made up by the employee under the direction of the
employee's immediate supervisor, or may be cause for disciplinary action. If granted, a rest period should
not exceed ten (10) minutes at any one time; and when it is granted, it should be near the middle of the
first and/or second half of the workday. The rest period shall include any time taken in preparation for the
rest period and in going to and from a specific rest period area. During breaks, employees shall be subject
to the discretion of their immediate supervisor as to the location of, and limitation of the employee’s
conduct, during breaks. Employees must also be aware of and abide by the City’s smoking policics and
prohibitions, as contained in this Handbook or otherwise established by the employee’s supervisor, as
well as state laws relating to smoking in certain public places. If for any reason an employee that
normally is granted rest periods does not receive a rest period on a particular day, or an employee does
not use a rest period granted, it does not accrue to be granted at some later time or date, unless expressly
authorized by the employee’s supervisor. This means that, unless expressly authorized by the employee’s
supervisor, the employee cannot combine two rest periods nor can a rest period be used to leave work

12




early of to extend the length of a lunch period or vacation leave. Unless expressly authorized by the
employee’s supervisor, an employee cannot take a rest period in shorter increments i.e. two five (5)
minute "smoke" breaks. Rest periods will not be granted to any employee who abuses the privilege.

GENERAL PAY INFORMATION: Certain mandatory deductions from paychecks will be
made in accordance with federal and state laws. In addition, the City of Berlin makes available certain
voluntary deductions as part of the City's benefits program. If an employee elects supplemental coverage
under one of the City's benefits plans, which requires employee contributions, the employee's share of the
cost will be deducted from his or her check each pay period. If the employee is not receiving a payroll
check due to illness, injury, or leave of absence, he or she will be required to pay the monthly cost
directly to the City.

OVERTIME: Because of the nature of work, employees may be asked to work overtime on
weekends or holidays or additional hours during the regular workday and are expected to comply with
such requests. Overtime compensation is paid to all non-exempt employees at one and one-half times
their straight time rate for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week.

If an employee is non-exempt, that employee must receive authorization from his or her supervisor before
working overtime. After an employee has worked overtime, he or she must enter it on a timesheet for the
pay period it is acerued,

Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked. Time taken for [unch or dinner is not included as time
worked for purposes of computing overtime. Time off on holidays, sick leave, vacation leave, personal
leave, training seminars or any leave of absence will not be factored in as hours worked when calculating
overtime.

COMPENSATORY TIME:

Exempi Employees: Employees exempt from the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act are
charged with fulfilling their duties and responsibilities and meeting their goals without regard to the
number of hours per day or per week and receive no overtime pay. Exempt employees may request of the
employer compensatory time off (which could be less than on an hour for hour basis) on applicable forms
prepared by City Administrator. Approval or denial of such request is at the discretion of the employece's
immediate supervisor. For the purposes of requesting compensatory time off, exempt employees will be
required to record compensatory time logged and taken on their respective time report. The employer is
not obligated to grant compensatory time off and compensatory time is not paid out at the time of
separation from employment, for any reason.

Non-Exempt Employees: As an alternative to getting paid monetarily for overtime as described above,
each non-exempt employee may, in the discretion of the employee's Department Head, be paid for
overtime in the form of compensatory time off, at the rate of one and one-half times their straight time
rate. The maximum amount of compensatory time off that can be accrued shall be forty (40) hours per
calendar year. Accrued but unused compensatory time off shall not be carried over from year to year and
shall be paid in cash at the end of each calendar year. An employee who has accrued compensatory time
and requests use of the time shall be permitted to use the time off within a reasonable period after making
the request, if the time off will not unduly disrupt the operations of the employee's department.
Compensatory hours accrued under the provisions of this agreement shall be paid out upon termination of
an employee's employment with the City of Berlin for any reason. '

i3




PAY SCHEDULE: All employees of the City of Berlin shall receive such salaries as may be
established from time to time by the Common Council or the appropriate board or commission,

Employees will be paid bi-weekly on Fridays. The 14-day pay period begins on Sunday and ends on
Saturday. If the regular payday falls on a holiday, payday will be the last regular workday before the
holiday. Picking up of payroll checks early is not permitted, except under permission from the City Clerk.

A few additional facts about pay:

« Step increases may be provided pursuant to a step increase policy established and amended from
time to time by the Common Council. Employees should consult with their supervisors for more
details.

e No deductions shall be made from employee wages without the employee's written authorization
except those deductions required by law, court, or contract. The City may not deduct any amount
from a paycheck due to faulty workmanship or lost or stolen property unless the employee has
first authorized it in writing, or the damage or loss is due to the employee's negligence or criminal
acts as determined by a court or by a representative appointed by the employee.

o If a paycheck is lost by an employee, or stolen, notify the Payroll Clerk immediately. The stop
payment bank charge will be assumed by the employee.

PERFORMANCE REVIEWS AND SALARY INCREASES: Supervisors and
employees are strongly encouraged to discuss job performance and goals informally any time. Formal
performance reviews will be conducted to provide both supervisors and employees with the opportunity
to discuss job tasks, identify and correct weaknesses, encourage and recognize strengths, and discuss
positive, purposeful approaches for meeting goals. These formal reviews will be conducted annually or as
deemed necessary by the supervisor. Salary and wage increases are based on those reviews (unless
salaries or wages are otherwise predetermined by Common Council). However, an employee receiving a
performance appraisal will not necessarily receive a salary or wage increase.

TIME RECORDS: All employees must keep accurate time recotds by completing timesheets.
Tampering with, falsifying or altering time cards will result in disciplinary action, up to and including
discharge. Failing to record work time or proper recording of benefit usage on timecards may also result
in disciplinary action, For payroll purposes, time is rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour,

WORK HOURS: The City of Berlin follows a work schedule of 40 hours per week. The normal
workweek is Monday through Friday, but may fluctuate by season or by department, Normal hours differ
by department. Each employee’s supervisor may establish alternative hours as needed. Also, some
department employees may also be subject to mandatory call-in duty outside of the employee’s normally
scheduled duties. If such mandatory call-in hours result in overtime hours for the employee, the
employce shall be paid in accordance with the overtime policy described in this Handbook.

VACATION, HOLIDAYS & LLEAVES

VACATION: The City of Berlin provides paid vacations for eligible employees as follows:
14




With the exception of the first year of employment, vacation days accrue according to the below schedule
on a prorated biweekly basis. Employees are not eligible to accrue or take vacation during their first year

of employment, but upon completion of their first year are immediately granted one (1) week of vacation

as credit for the previous year, as indicated in the schedule below. For vacation purposes, a week shall be
consistent with the normally scheduled workweek or a week cycle of the same number of hours.

Length of Contimuous Full Time Employment Vacation Earning Rates
After one year One (1) week granted for credit of previous year
Begiming of 2nd year through 6 years Two (2) weeks per year
Beginning of 7th year through 15 years Three (3) weeks per year
Begmning of 16th year through 20 years Four (4) weeks per year
Begimming of 21st year and over Five (5) weeks per year

Only active, full-time employees are eligible for paid vacation, and all vacation must be earned before
being taken. Employees may not substitute pay for unused vacation. Should a City holiday occur during
an employee’s vacation, that employee may add an additional day, either at the beginning or end of the
vacation period, with that employee’s supervisor’s approval.

The City of Berlin reserves the right not to approve a vacation request if it will interfere with City
operations or adversely affect coverage of job and staff requirements, Whenever possible, employees’
requests for vacation will be accommodated, but where scheduling conflicts arise, supervisor discretion
will prevail.

Unused vacation can be carried over up to twice the annual vacation amount. Therefore, if an employee
receives two week’s vacation per year, they can accumulate up to four weeks at a time before time begins

to be lost.

In the event of an employee's death, compensation for all unused and accumulated vacation allowance
shall be paid to the beneficiary.

SICK LEAVE: Full-time employees are eligible to earn sick day credits not to exceed twelve (12)
paid sick days for the employment year, Full-time employees shall earn one sick leave day per month of
continuous employment accumulated to a maximum of 130 days. Employees in their initial year of
employment are eligible to accrue sick leave based on the number of months of employment during that
calendar year. If an employee received pay for ten (10) or more normal workdays during a calendar
month, that month will be considered a month of employment.

To be eligible for a sick day, the employee must call in each day to the employee’s supervisor no later
than 15 minutes after the employee’s usual start time for work, If the employee does not call in, the
absence will be considered unexcused and the employee will not be paid for it. Permitted use of sick leave
includes absences from duty due to, (1) bona fide ilinesses of the employee, (2) caring for an immediate
household family member of the employee (meaning spouse, child or parent living in the same household
as the employee) with a serious health condition., (3) contact with or exposure to contagious disease
rendering the employee's presence hazardous to fellow workers, or (4) preventative medicine or treatment
or validated reasonable medical or dental care that cannot be scheduled during non-working hours. Any
use of sick leave for purposes other than the reasons above described is an abuse of the sick leave policy
and may result in discipline, up to and including termination.

15




Sick leave shall apply only to days that the employee is regularly scheduled to work and shall not apply to
overtime hours or to days when the employee is on any other type of paid or unpaid leave.

The City of Berlin reserves the right to request a doctor's certificate for either the employee, or the
immediate houschold family member being cared for, as applicable, for any sick days requested. If such a
certificate is requested and the employee cannot or will not produce it, the absence may be considered
unexcused, and the employee will not be paid for it. All sick leaves exceeding three days shall require a
doctor's certificate to be submitted to the City Administrator or his/her designee. In conjunction with the
doctor’s certificate for immediate household family members being cared for, the City reserves the right
to determine whether an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition constitutes a serious
health condition entitling the employee the use of sick leave. A "serious health condition" under this
policy is defined the same as under the City’s Family and Medical Leave Policy contained in this
Handbook.

As a mutual protection for the employee and the City, the City may require an employee to submit to a
physical examination by a City designated physician when in the opinion of the Department Head, in
consultation with the City Administrator, the performance of the employee may have become limited to
or weakened by virtue of impaired health. The City Administrator may require the employee to conform
to the physician's recommendations as a condition of continued employment with the City.

Upon an employee’s termination of employment for any reason other than quitting or discharge for cause,
the employer shall maintain in escrow an amount equal to the employee’s accumulated unused sick leave
to a maximum of sixty-five (65) days. This shall be computed at the current rate of pay at the time of the
employee's retirement. Said escrowed amount shall be applied by the employer toward the employee’s
share of any post termination health insurance premiums and/or authorized HSA contributions (such as
for COBRA premiums or post retirement health coverage as applicable). Further, if an employee dies
after such termination as described hereunder, the balance of the escrowed funds shall be applied toward
COBRA premiums and/or authorized HSA contributions for the deceased employee’s spouse or other
eligible dependent, Unused sick leave will not otherwise be paid out or used for any other purpose. The
City’s payments from the escrow shall be made only once per month, unless reasonable exceptions are
made for urgent payments. For purposes of this provision, the term “quitting” means termination of
employment initiated by the employee, except for eligible retirement under the Wisconsin Retirement
System.

Ini case of death of an employee who would have qualified for retirement under the Wisconsin Retirement
System, any remaining unused accumulated sick leave shall be paid, subject to the limitations described
above to the dependent beneficiary indicated in the employee's Wisconsin Retirement System plan.

All sick leave shall be subject to administration by the City Administrator.

Work-related illnesses are covered under Worker's Compensation elsewhere in this Handbook.

PERSONAL LEAVE: The City of Berlin provides full-time employces up to two (2) paid
personal days per calendar year, which can be used for any reason. New employees shail be credited with
a pro-rata share of Personal Leave days from the beginning of their employment.

Employees must use personal days by December 31 of each year, as unused personai days may not be

carried over to the next calendar year. Employees will not be paid for accrued unused personal days on
termination, :

16




HOLIDAYS: The City of Berlin observes the following holidays and will not conduct business on
these days:

New Year's Day

New Year's Eve (1/2 day)
Memorial Day
Independence Day

Labor Day

Thanksgiving

Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day
Christmas Eve (1/2 day)
Good Friday

Employees will be paid for these holidays if he or she:

+ s a full-time employee who has worked at least 90 days at the City, and
o Has worked the full day before and the full day after the holiday, unless time off has been
approved in advance by his or her supervisor.

Holidays that fall on a weekend will be observed either on a Friday or Monday. If a holiday falls on a
Saturday, the preceding Friday will be the observed holiday. When it falls on a Sunday, the following
Monday shall be the observed holiday. This applies for all employees except those regularly scheduled to
work on a shift basis or departments scheduled to operate on specific holidays. In these cases, department
regulations may take precedent.

Due to community needs, some employees may be required to work on City holidays. Each employee’s
supervisor will notify him or her if this may apply to him or her.

Employees who work on paid holidays shall receive pay at time and one-half their normal wage. Under
no circumstances will an employee be compensated with both holiday pay and sick leave pay when the
employee is unable to report to work on a scheduled holiday.

The City will work to make reasonable accommoadations for employee's holiday time off due to the
observance of conscientious refigious beliefs, Department heads must be consulted at least three (3) days
in advance of such a religious observance in order to insure that the employee's dutics are covered. Any
such day shall be without pay unless approved paid leave is available.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE: Full-time employees who have worked at the City of Berlin for at
least ninety (90) days are permitted:
e Three (3) days of paid leave to attend the funeral, and directly related activities, for any of the
following members of the employee’s family:

oSpouse

oChildren

oChildren-in-law

oParents

oParents-in-law

oSiblings

oGrandparents

oGrandchildren

17




#One (1) day of paid leave to attend the funeral, and directly related activities, for any of the
following members of the employee’s family:
oGrandparents-in-law
oGrandchildren-in-law
oSiblings-in-law
oAunt
olUncle

Bereavement pay will only be paid for actual days of attendance of the funeral and related activities. No
bereavement pay will be granted for funerals, and directly related activities, which are not on a scheduled
workday unless authorized by the City Administrator. A portion of the paid bereavement leave may be
granted for travel if the employee has to travel long distances for the funeral and directly related activities.
Time off in excess of the paid leave granted hereunder may be granted without pay if approved by the
employee's supervisor. The employee may also utilize any unused vacation or personal time for this
reason.

The employee’s supervisor must approve all bereavement time, and the City may request verification of
the facts surrounding the leave and grant or deny the leave as deemed appropriate. Bereavement leave
will not be paid if it occurs when the employee is on vacation or leave of absence, absent due to illness or
injury, or not working due to a paid holiday.

MILITARY LEAVE: Pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment
Rights Act (USERRA), the City of Berlin prohibits discrimination against persons because of their
service in the Armed Forces, the Army National Guard and the Air Force National Guard when engaged
in active duty for training, inactive duty training, or full-time National Guard duty, the commissioned
corps of the Public Health Service, and any other category of persons designated by the President in time
of war or emergency. Full-time employees are entitled to up to four years of unpaid leave for military
duty or training.

JURY DUTY: The City of Berlin supports employees in fulfilling their civic responsibilities by
serving jury duty when required and fully compensates them for time served. Any full-time employee
required to serve jury duty shall be paid regular wages and shall turn over to the City Clerk any
compensation, excluding mileage allowance, received as a result of such jury duty. Howevet, such
employee must inform his ot her supervisor of his or her jury summons as soon as possible so that
arrangements can be made to accommodate his or her absence. He or she will be expected to report for
work during his or her jury service whenever the court schedule permits. All employee benefits will
remain in effect for the full term of his or her jury duty absence.

TIME OFF FROM WORK IN CONNECTION WITH COURT CASES: we
recognize that an employee might be subpoenaed or otherwise required to serve as a third party witness in
a coutt case or arbitration. An employee called to testify will be paid for the time away from work if the
case involves an offense against the City of Berlin or an incident that occurred during employment. If
called for other types of legal proceedings, an employee may use available vacation and personal days to
cover his or her time away from work; otherwise the leave will be unpaid.

Employees will ot be terminated based on being absent from work for serving as'a third party witness in
a court case, However, if an employee is called to serve, he or she must notify his or her supervisor as
soon as possible.

18




TIME OFF TO VOTE: Employees who are eligible to vote in an election may request
reasonable time off without pay to vote. If an employee plans to take such time off, he or she must notify
his or her supervisor before Election Day. The City may specify which hour(s) employees may take off
for this purpose.

FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT:

1. PURPOSE: This policy outlines the provisions of the federal and Wisconsin Family and Medical
Leave Acts and the rights and obligations of employees and employers under both laws.

II. POLICY: The Family and Medical Leave Acts provide eligible employees with up to 12 work
weeks of unpaid protected leave each calendar year for specified family and medical reasons. The
eligibility and entitlements are defined ditferently under federal and state law.

A. Eligibility: Employees are entitled to FMLA benefits if they:

1. Federal — Have been employed by the city for at least 12 months (not necessarily
consecutive); and have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12 months prior to the
start of the FMLA leave. Time spent on paid or unpaid leave does not count in
determining the 1,250 hour eligibility.

2. State - Have been employed by the city for at least 52 consecutive weeks and have
worked for at least 1,000 hours during the 52 wecks prior to the start of the FMLA
leave.

B. Qualifying Fvent and Amount of Leave

1. Eligible employees may take up to a total of 12 work weeks of unpaid FMLA leave in
a calendar year for the following qualifying events:

a) The birth or placement of a child for adoption or, under Federal FMLA, for
foster care:

i. State law provides up to 6 work weeks of unpaid leave for any one
child.

ii. Federal law requires that leave conclude within 12 months after the
birth.

b) To care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent (includes a parent-in-law
under the Wisconsin FMLA) with a serious health condition;

i. State law provides eligible employees up to 2 work weeks of FMLA
family leave.

¢) Family leave due to an employee’s spouse, child, or parent being on exigent
active duty or having been notified of an impending call or order to exigent
active duty as a member of the reserve components of the Armed Forces or a
retired member of the Regular Armed Forces or Reserve, in support of a
contingency operation,
16




d) For the employee’s own serious health condition that renders the employee
unable to perform his/her job.

i. State law provides eligible employees up to 2 workwecks of FMLA
medical leave.

2. Eligible employees may take up to a total of 26 work weeks of unpaid FMLA leave
during a single 12 month period (beginning on the first day the eligible employee
takes FMLA leave to care for a covered service member and ends 12 months after that
date, regardless of the method used by the employer to determine the employee’s 12
work weeks of leave entitlement for other FMLA-qualifying reasons) to care for a
spouse, child, parent, or next of kin who is a member of the Armed Forces who
suffered an injury or illness while on active duty that renders the person unable to
perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, or rating,

a) During the single 12 month period, an eligible employee shall be entitled to a
combined total of 26 work weeks of leave under federal law.

3. Leave qualifying for both Wisconsin and federal FMLA leave will count against the
employee’s entitlement under both laws and will run concurrently. When the
reason(s) for qualified leave differ, the leave may not run concurrently under federal
and state law, and an employee may be entitled to more than 12 wecks of leave in a
calendar year. This type of leave occurrence will be evaluated and reviewed with the
employee at the time of the leave. Qualified leave taken under Worker’s
Compensation also will run concurrently with federal FMLA leave,

Under the federal FMLA, spouses employed by the City are jointly entitled to a
combined total of 12 work weeks of family leave for the birth or placement of a child
for adoption or foster care, and to care for a parent (but not a parent-in-law) who has a
serious health condition.

C. Non Continuons or Intermittent Leave: Employees are permitted to take leave on an
intermittent (blocks of time) or reduced work schedule:

1. When it is medically necessary to care for a family member with a serious health
condition or because of the employee’s serious health condition.

2. When it is necessary to care for a family member or next of kin who suffered an injury
or illness while on active duty,

3. To care for a newborn, adopied or foster child. Federal FMLA leave for the bitth or
placement of a child for adoption or foster care may not be taken in non-continuous
increments unless approved by the City. Under the Wisconsin FMLA, the last
increment of leave for the birth or placement of a child for adoption must begin within
16 weeks of that birth or placement.

Medical or family caretaking leave should be planned so as not to unduly disrupt the
City’s operations. Employees requesting non-continuous federal FMLA. leave that is
foreseeable based on planned medical treatment for purposes of providing care to a child,
spouse, or parent with a serious health condition or for the employee’s own serious health
condition may be required to transfer temporarily to an alternative position for which the
employee is qualified and which better accommodates recurring periods of leave that the
20




regular employment position of the employee. An employee temporarily transferred will
receive the same pay and benefits, but may be assigned different duties.

The City allows for intermittent leave to be taken in no less than one hour increments.
The employee may not take, or be required to take, more leave than medically necessary
to address the circumstances that caused the need for the leave,

D. Payments on FMLA Leave: In general, both Wisconsin and federal FMLA leaves arc
unpaid. The City may require employees, or employees may choose, to substitute paid leave
for which they are eligible (such as vacation days, personal leave, compensatory time, or sick
leave) for unpaid leave available under the federal FMLA; or employees may choose to
substitute available accrued feave for unpaid Wisconsin FMLA.

The City will require that any leave provided by a City collective bargaining agreement be
substituted for federal FMLA leave.

E. How to Apply for FMLA Leave
1. Employees must submit a Request for Leave form to the City Administrator’s office at

least 30 days, or as soon as practicable, in advance of taking leave. If circumstances
do not permit an employee to give natice in advance of taking leave, the employee
must notify their supervisor and the City Administrator, and submit the Request to
Leave form as soon as possible. Failure to give timely notice may result in the delay
or denial of FMLA leave and may subject an employee to discipline under City
policies,

2, If the feave is for a family member’s or the employee’s serious health condition, the
employee must submit a medical certification from the employee’s or the family
member’s health care provider within 15 days. If an employee does not provide the
required certification by the designated deadline, or if the City determines that an
employee’s absence is not covered as FMLA leave, the leave may not be designated as
Wisconsin and/or federal FMLA leave, and the employee may be subject to discipline
under City attendance policies unless he or she uses accrued paid leave (like vacation)
and/or is granfed a non-FMLA [eave of absence.

3. Second or third certifications at the City’s expense and periodic re-certifications at the
employee’s expense may be required under certain circumstances, The City requires
periodic reports during federal FMLA leave regarding the employee’s status and intent
to return to work.

4, Forms are available through the City Administrator’s office.

F. Health Insurance Benefits: Group health insurance coverage will be maintained for
employees while they are on FMLA leave, on the same terms as if the employee continued to
work. The employee will be required to pay his/her regular portion of health insurance
premium payments on a schedule established by the City.

The City may recover its share of health insurance premiums paid during a period of
unpaid FMLA leave from an employee if the employee fails to return to work (for a
minimum of 30 calendar days) after the expiration of the leave. The City may not collect
the premiums if the reason the employee does not return is due to continuation,
recurrence ot onset of a serious health condition that would entitle the employee to leave
under FMLA, or other circumstances beyond the employee’s control.

21




The City may discontinue health insurance benefits if the employee fails to make a
premium payment within 30 days of the due date after providing written notice to the
employee of the canceflation of coverage for non-payment.

G. Worker’s Compensation and Light Duty: Federal FMLA will run concurrent with

worker’s compensation provided that the injury meets the criteria for a “serious health
condition®, as defined by law. Substitution of accrued paid leave is not allowed for Worker’s
Compensation absences unless an applicable labor agreement provides otherwise.

If an employee accepts a light duty assignment while on worker’s compensation, that time
may not count against the employee’s family or medical leave entitlement. If the light duty
position is declined and the employee elects to stay on FMLA leave, the employee may give
up their worker’s compensation benefits.

H. Return te Work: Any employee returning from FMLA for their own serious health

condition must provide a Fitness for Duty statement signed by their treating physician. Upon
return from FMLA leave, an employee shall be restored to his or her original position or, if
the position is not vacant, to an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other
terms and conditions of employment.

An employee will not be restored to their original or equivalent position if they are unable to
petform the functions of their job because of a mental or physical condition, unless the
condition qualifies under the ADA and a reasonable accommodation can be made,

1. Definitions

A

Child: Biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward or, under federal FMLA, the
child of a person having day-to-day care of the child, or a child of a person standing “in loco
parentis”, who is under 18 years of age or 18 years of age and clder and incapable of self-care
because of a serious health condition.

Covered Service member: A current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of
the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or
therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired
list, for a serious injury or illness.

. Incapable of Self-Care: The individaal requires active assistance or supervision to provide

daily self-care in three or more of the activities of daily hiving (i.. grooming, hygiene, bathing,
dressing, eating) or instrumental activities of daily living (i.e. cooking, cleaning, shopping,
utilizing public transportation, paying bills, maintaining a residence, using telephones and
directories, and using a post office).

. Next of Kin: The nearest blood relative other than the covered service member’s spouse,

parent, son, or daughter, in the following order of priority: Blood relatives who have been
granted legal custody of the covered service members by court decree or statutory provisions,
brothers and sisters, grandparents, aunts and uncles, and first cousins, unless the covered
service members has specifically designated in writing another blood relative as his or her
nearest blood relative for purposes of military caregiver leave under the FMLA., When no
such designation is made, and there are multiple family members with the same level of
relationship to the covered service member, all such family members shall be considered the
covered service member’s next of kin and may take FMLA leave to provide care to the
covered service member, either consecutively or simultaneously, When such designation has

22




been made, the designated individual shall be deemed to be the covered service members’
only next of kin.

E. Parent: Biological parent, foster parent, adoptive parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an
employee, or parent-in-law under the Wisconsin FMLA. Under the federal FMLA, “parent”
includes an individual who provided day-to-day care to the employee when the employee was
a child.

F. Serious Health Condition: An iliness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition
that involves:

1. Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility; or

2. Under Wisconsin FMLA, outpatient care that requires continuing treatment or
supervision by a health care provider (generally defined as requiring two direct,
continuous and first hand contacts by a health care provider); or

3. Under the federal FMLA:

a. A period of incapacity of more than 3 consecutive, full calendar days, and any
subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition,
that also involves:

i. Treatment two or more times, within 30 days of the first day of
incapacity, unlfess exfenuating circumstances exist, by a health care
provider, by a nurse under direct supervision of a health care provider,
or by a provider of health care services (i.e. physical therapist) under
orders of, or on referral by, a health care providet; or

ii. Treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion, that results
in a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of a health
care provider.

s The first or only in person treatment visit must take place
within seven days of the first day of incapacity.

o Whether additional visits or a regimen of continuing treatment
is necessary within the 30 day period shall be determined by
the health care provider,

b. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care;

¢. Chronic conditions requiring periodic treatment {defined as at least twice a
year) by or under the supervision of a health care provider that continue over
an extended period of time and may cause an episodic rather than a continuing
period of incapacity (i.e. asthma, diabetes, epilepsy, ctc.);

d. Permanent/long term conditions requiring supervision for which treatment
may not be effective (i.e. Alzheimer’s, a severe stroke, or the terminal stages
of a disease};

e. Multiple treatments by or under the supervision of a health care provider

either for restorative surgery after an accident or other injury or for a
23




condition that would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three
calendar days in the absence of medical intervention or treatment, such as
cancer (chemotherapy), severe arthritis (physical therapy), or kidney disease
{dialysis).

LEAVES OF ABSENCE: A City of Berlin employee, upon written request, and with the
recommendation of the Department Head and City Administrator, may be granted a non-FMLA leave of
absence without pay for a period of up to three (3) months, subject to the approval of the Common
Council, or the applicable Board or Commission having statutory authority over the employee's
department. Requests for such leave must be made in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the first day
ol leave, All eligible vacation and personal leave days must be exhausted prior to requesting such an
unpaid leave of absence. If sick leave is eligible to be used for the leave, all available sick leave days must
be exhausted prior to requesting an unpaid leave of absence.

The written request for such leave of absence must fully state and detail the purpose of the leave and the
beginning and ending dates of the leave, Once the written request is submitted to the City Administrator
or Department Head, the respective governing body will approve or disapprove according to City policy.

A leave of absence without pay shall not be construed as a break in service or employment. However,
during such leaves, no seniority, vacation, sick leave or other paid benefits shall accrue during the period.
of absence. Upon return from such leave, for every 30 consecutive calendar days an employee was gone
on the leave, the employee's evaluation date shall be set forward one (1) month to account for the break in
service, Time spent on leave without pay shall not count toward service for wage increases.

Use of a leave of absence hereunder for a purpose other than that requested may result in discipline up to
and including termination. Failure of an employee on leave to report to work promptly at the leave
expiration may result in discipline up to and including termination.

An employee on a leave hereunder for more than thirty (30) consecutive days is responsible to pay the
entire cost of health and life insurance premiums for the duration of the leave. Further, if an employee on
a leave hereunder does not return to work from the leave, even if the leave is less than 30 days, that
employee shall be responsible to reimburse the City for any health or life insurance premiums paid on
his/her behalf during the leave. Written arrangements must be made with the City Clerk regarding
payment for these insurance costs.

ANTI DISCRIMINATION & HARASSMENT POLICY

24




The City of Berlin strives to maintain an environment free from discriniination and harassment, where
employees treat cach other with respect, dignity and courtesy. This policy applies to all phases of
employment, including but not limited to recruiting, testing, hiring, promoting, demoting, transferring,
laying off, terminating, paying, granting benefits and training.

Prohibited Behavior: The City of Betlin does not and will not tolerate any type of harassment of our
employees or applicants for employment. Discriminatory conduct or conduct characterized as harassment
as defined below is prohibited. The term harassment includes, but is not limited to, slurs, jokes, and other
verbal or physical conduct relating to a person's gender, ethnicity, race, color, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, national origin, age, disability, marital status, military service status or any other protected
classification that unreascnably interferes with a person's work performance or creates an intimidating,
hostile work environment.

Sexually harassing behavior in particular includes unwelcome conduct such as: sexual advances, requests
for sexual favors, offensive touching, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. Such conduct
may constitute sexual harassment when it:

» ig made an explicit or implicit condition of employment

« is used as the basis for employment decisions

« unreasonably interferes with an individual's work performance, or
« creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

The types of conduct covered by this policy include: demands or subtle pressure for sexual favors
accompanied by a promise of favorable job treatment or a threat concerning employment. Specifically, it
includes sexual behavior such as:

o repeated sexual flirtations, advances or propositions

« continued and repeated verbal abuse of a sexual nature, sexually related comments and joking,
graphic or degrading comments about an employee's appearance or displaying sexually
suggestive objects or pictures including cartoons and vulgar e-mail messages, and

+ any uninvited physical contact or touching, such as patting, pinching or repeated brushing against
another's body.

Such conduct may constitute sexual harassment regardless of whether the conduct is between members of
management, between management and staff employees, between staff employees, or directed at
employees by non-employees conducting business with the City, regardless of gender or sexual
orientation.

Harassment by Non-emplovees: The City of Berlin will also endeavor to protect employees, to the
extent possible, from reported harassment by non-employees in the workplace, including citizens and
suppliers.

Complaint Procedure and Investipation: Any employee who wishes to report a possible incident
of sexual harassment or other unlawful harassment or discrimination should promptly report the matter to
the employee's supervisor. If that person is not available, or the employee believes it would be
inappropriate to contact that person, that employee may contact the City Administrator.

The City of Berlin will conduct a prompt investigation as confidentially as possible under the
circumstances. Employees who raise concerns and make reports in good faith can do so without fear of
reptisal; at the same time, employees have an obligation to cooperate with the City of Berlin in enforcing
this policy and investigating and remedying complaints.

25




Any employee who becomes aware of possible sexual harassment or other illegal discrimination against
others should promptly advise the employee's supervisor or any other appropriate member of
management.

Anyone found to have engaged in such wrongtul behavior will be subject to appropriate discipline, which
may inchude termination.

Retaliation: Any employee who files a complaint of sexual harassment or other discrimination in good
faith will not be adversely affected in terms and conditions of employment and will not be retaliated
against or discharped because of the complaint.

In addition, we will not tolerate retaliation against any employee who, in good faith, cooperates in the
investigation of a complaint, Anyone who engages in such retaliatory behavior will be subject to
appropriate discipline, up to and including termination.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY POLICY: The City of Berlin provides equal opportunity in all of
our employment practices to all qualified employees and applicants without regard to race, color, religion,
gender, national origin, age, disability, marital status, military status or any other category protected by
federal, state and local laws. This policy applies to all aspects of the employment relationship, including
recruitment, hiring, compensation, promotion, transfer, disciplinary action, layoff, return from layoff,
training and social, and recreational programs, All such employment decisions will be made without
unlawfully discriminating on any prohibited basis.

AMERICANS W/DISABILITIES ACT: 1tis the City of Berlin's policy to not discriminate
against qualified individuals with disabilities with regard to any aspect of their employment. The City of
Berlin is committed to complying with the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 and its related Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The City of Berlin recognizes that some individuals with
disabilities may require accommodations at work. If an employee is currently disabled or becomes
disabled during his or her employment, he or she should contact his or her supervisor to discuss
reasonable accommodations that may enable him or her to perform the essential functions of his or her

job.

CONDUCT STANDARDS

26




ZERO TOLERANCE FOR WORKPLACE VIOLENCE: The City of Berlin has a
zero-tolerance policy concerning threats, intimidation and violence of any kind in the workplace either
committed by or directed to employees. Employees who engage in such conduct will be disciplined, up to
and including immediate termination of employment.

Employees who are not law enforcement employees are not permitted to bring weapons of any kind onto
City premises or to City functions, except, pursuant to Wis. Stat. 175.60(15m), a licensee ot an out-of-
state licensee shall not be prohibited from carrying a concealed weapon or ammunition, or from storing a
weapon or ammunition, in the licensee's or out-of-state licensee's own motor vehicle, regardless of
whether the motor vehicle is used in the course of employment or whether the motor vehicle is driven or
parked on City property. Any employee who is suspected of possessing a weapon in violation of this
policy will be subject to a search at the City's discretion. Such searches may include, but not be limited to,
the employee's personal cffects, desk and workspace.

If an employee believes he or she has been subjected to threats or threatening conduct by a co-worker,
vendor or citizen during his/her course of employment, the employee should notify his or her supervisor
or another member of management immediately, Employees will not be penalized for reporting such
CONcerns.

WORKPLACE SOLICITATION: To promote a professional and collegial workplace,
prevent disruptions in business or interference with work, and avoid personal inconvenience, the City of
Berlin has adopted rules about soliciting for any cause and distributing literature of any kind in the
workplace.

Employees may not solicit on City property or use City facilities, such as e-mail, voice mail or bulletin
boards during working time for solicitation. This policy applies to collecting funds, requesting
contributions, selling merchandise, gathering employee signatures and promoting membership in clubs or
organizations. Working time means time during which employees are expected to be actively engaged in
their assigned work; it does not include scheduled meal or break periods,

An employee may solicit another employee only if both that employee and the other employee are not on
working time, and employees may distribute literature only in non-working areas and while not on
working time to other employees who are not on working time.

The City of Berlin may grant limited exemptions from these rules for charitable purposes at its discretion.

The City of Berlin does not endorse or assist vendors in selling their product or service, For the purposes
of this Policy, a "vendor" is a person, group of people, or organization (whether profit or non-profit)
selling or promoting a product or service for personal use. These persons who are selling or promoting
this product or service shall not contact city employees during work hours. Vendors may not send by U.S.
mail, interoffice mail, or deliver, any materials to city employees at their work address.

SMOKING POLICY: Smoking is prohibited inside City of Berlin facilities and City owned
vehicles. All employees or visitors are expected to comply with this policy, and employees who violate it
may be disciplined. Should an employee have a question, complaint or dispute about smoking in the
workplace, he or she may contact the City Administrator.

PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE: The City of Berlin retains the discretion to discipline its

employees, Oral and written warnings and progressive discipline up to and including discharge may be
27




administered as appropriate under the circumstances. Typical disciplinary progression for minor offenses
includes: first offense - oral warning, second offense - written warning, third offense - three (3) day
suspension without pay. On a third offense the employee must submit a sincere and logical written
proposal of corrective behavior he/she will undergo to correct the problem. All or none of these steps may
be taken as deemed appropriate by the supervisor.

Please note that the City of Berlin reserves the right to terminate any employee without resorting to any
aspect of the progressive discipline process.

Grievances: Employees are encouraged to bring concerns, problems and grievances to management's
attention. Employees are also obligated to report any wrongdoing of which he or she becomes aware to
his or her immediate supervisor or, if the situation warrants, to any City of Berlin official,

Grievance Policy A: Employee Discipline, Termination of Employment, Workplace Safety
DEFINITIONS:

1.A “grievance” as used in this Grievance Policy A shall mean a dispute regarding the application of City
policies regarding an employee's discipline or fermination of employment, or a dispute
concerning wotkplace safety. (Please note that grievances regarding any other issues shall be
addressed under Grievance Policy B below.) No grievance shall be processed under this
Grievance Policy A unless it is in writing and contains all of the following:

the name and position of the grievant;

a clear and concise statement of the grievance;

the issue involved;

the relief sought;

the date the incident or alleged violation took place;

the specific section of the Employee Handbook, City policy, or workplace safety rule
alleged to have been violated; and

the signature of the grievant and the date.

HEoawse

2

2.The term "days" means regular business days, Monday through Friday, other than weekends and
holidays regardless of whether the employee or his or her classification is scheduled to work.
The time within which an act is to be done under this policy shall be computed by excluding the
first day and including the last day.

3.A "grievant" is an employee as defined by state statutes governing this grievance procedure. At the
grievant’s cost and request they may be represented by a person of their choice.

4."Workplace safety" means those conditions related to physical health and safety of employees
enforceable under federal or state law, or City rule related to: safety of the physical work
environment, the safe operation of workplace equipment and tools, provision of protective
equipment, training and warning requirements, workplace violence and accident risk.

5."Discipline" means oral reprimands (where a written record of the reprimand is placed in the
employee’s file), written reprimands, suspension and demotion. Discipline does not include
performance reviews, work plans or corrective actions that do not include a reprimand or other
adverse employment action.

6."Termination" means discharge from employment. Layoffs (reduction in force) are not considered
terminations and are not subject to this procedure.

28




PROCEDURES:

First Step: Within ten (10} days after the facts upon which the grievance is based or should have
reasonably become known the employee shall present the written grievance to his/her immediate
supervisor. The immediate supervisor shall give a written answer within ten (10) days of receipt of the
grievance, with a copy to the City Administrator.

An employee who has been notified of termination may process the grievance commencing at the Third
Step.

Second Step: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at the First Step, it may be submitted by the
grievant to the City Administrator within five (5) days after having received the answer in the First Step.
After receipt of the written grievance by the City Administrator, he/she or the designated representative of
the City Administrator will meet with the grievant in an effort to resolve the issue(s) raised by the
grievance. Within ten (10) days after the meeting, the City Administrator shall respond to the grievance
in writing. The City Administrator shall also determine if the grievance is timely, if the subject matter of
the grievance is within the scope of this policy and otherwise properly processed as required by this
policy. If the City Administrator is aware of other similar pending grievances, the City Administrator may
consolidate those maiters and process them as one grievance.

Third Step: Upon the written request of the grievant in response to an adverse decision, the decision at
the Second Step may be appealed by a written statement forwarded to the City Administrator particularly
describing the reason for appeal. If the decision at the Second Step is based in whole or in part on the
basis of timeliness, scope of the grievance process or other failure of the grievant to properly follow the
process the matter shall be referred to the Common Council (or highest level governing body having
exclusive jurisdication over the matter) who shall determine whether the matter should be processed
further. If the Second Step decision is on the merits of the grievance only the grievance will be referred to
an Impartial Hearing Officer (IHO). The IHO will be designated by the City Administrator. Any costs
incurred by the (IHO) will be paid by the City. The IHO will convene a hearing in the manaer the IHO
determines necessary. The THO shall have the authority to administer oaths, issue subpoenas at the
request of the parties, and decide if a transcript is necessary. The IHO may require the parties to submit
gricvance documents and witness lists in advance of the hearing to expedite the hearing. The burden of
proof shall be “a preponderance of the evidence”. In termination and discipline cases, the City shall have
the burden. In workplace safety cases, the employee shall have the burden. The IHO may apply relaxed
standards for the admission of evidence, including allowing the admission of hearsay. The IHO may
request oral or written arguments and replies. The IHO shall provide the parties a written decision.

The THO may only consider the matter presented in the initial grievance filed by the employee. The IHO
shall have no power to add to, subtract from or modify the terms of the employment policy or tule that
forms the basis for the grievance.

Fourth Step: Either party may appeal an adverse determination at step three to the Common Council (or
highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter), by filing written notice
appealing the decision of the THO in the City Administrator’s Office within ten (10) days of the decision
of the IHO. The Common Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over
the matter) shall within thirty (30) days after submission of the appeal schedule the review of the IHO's
decision. The review will be conducted by the Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive
jurisdication over the matter) during a closed session meeting unless an apen session is requested by the
employee. The Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter)
may make its decision based on the written decision of the THO or the Council (or highest level governing
body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) may examine any records, evidence and testimony
29




produced at the hearing before the IHO. A simple majority vote of the membership of the Council (or
highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) shall decide the appeal
within twenty (20) days following the fast session scheduled for review. The Council (or highest level
governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) will issue a final written decision which
shall be binding on all parties.

TIMELINES: Failure to process a grievance by the grievant within the time limit, or agreed upon
extensions, shall constitute waiver of the grievance and will be considered resolved on the basis of the
City's last answer. Failure of a management representative to meet the time limits shall cause the
grievance to move automatically to the next step in the procedure. To encourage that gricvances are
addressed in a prompt manner the time limits set by this policy are intended to be strictly observed and
may not be extended except in extreme circumstances and then only upon the express written consent of
the parties.

EXCLUSIVE REMEDY: This procedure constitutes the exclusive process for the redress of any
employee grievances as defined herein. However, nothing in this grievance procedure shall prevent any
employee from addressing concerns regarding matters not subject to the grievance procedure with
administration and employees are encouraged to do so. Matters not subject to the grievance procedure
that are raised by employees shall be considered by administration which has final authority, subject to
any applicable Common Council policy or directive, to resolve the matter.

Grievance Policy B: Issues Other Than Employee Discipline, Termination of Employment,
Workplace Safety

DEFINITIONS:

1.A “grievance” as used in this Grievance Policy B shall mean a dispute regarding the application of City
policies regarding issues other than issues covered by Grievance Policy A. No gricvance shall be
processed under this Grievance Policy B unless it is in writing and contains all of the following:

the name and position of the grievant;

a clear and concise statement of the grievance;

the issue involved;

the relief sought;

the date the incident or alleged violation took place;

the specific section of the Employee Handbook or City policy alleged to have been
violated; and

the signature of the grievant and the date.

HEO QW

Q

2.The term "days" means regular business days, Monday through Friday, other than weekends and
holidays regardless of whether the employee or his or her classification is scheduled to work.
The time within which an act is to be done under this policy shall be computed by excluding the
first day and including the last day.

3.A "grievant" is an employee of the City filing a grievance under this Grievance Policy B. At the
grievant’s cost and request they may be represented by a person of their choice.

PROCEDURES:

First Step: Within ten (10) days after the facts upon which the grievance is based or should have
reasonably become known the employee shall present the written grievance to his/her immediate
supervisor. The immediate supervisor shall give a written answer within ten (10) days of receipt of the
grievance, with a copy to the City Administrator.

30




Second Step: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at the First Step, it may be submitted by the
grievant to the City Administrator within five (5) days after having received the answer in the First Step.
After receipt of the written grievance by the City Administrator, he/she or the designated representative of
the City Administrator will meet with the grievant in an effort to resolve the issue(s) raised by the
grievance. Within ten (10) days after the meeting, the City Administrator shall respond to the grievance
in writing. The City Administrator shall also determine if the grievance is timely, if the subject matter of
the grievance is within the scope of this policy and otherwise properly processed as required by this
policy. If the City Administrator is aware of other similar pending grievances, the City Administrator may
consolidate those matters and process them as one grievance.

Third Step: Upon the written request of the grievant in response to an adverse decision, the decision at
the Second Step may be appealed by a written statement forwarded to the City Administrator particularly
describing the reason for appeal. The City Administrator shall then forward the grievance to the Common
Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter). The Common
Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) shall within
thirty (30) days after submission of the appeal schedule the review of the City Administrator's decision.
The review will be conducted by the Common Council {or highest level governing body having exclusive
jurisdication over the matter) during a closed session meeting unless an open session is requested by the
employee. The Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter)
may make its decision based on the written decision of the City Administrator or the Council (or highest
level poverning body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) may examine any records, cvidence
and testimony produced at a hearing before the Council (or highest level governing body having exclusive
jurisdication over the matter), if authorized. .A simple majority vote of the membership of the Council
(or highest fevel governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) shall decide the appeal
within twenty (20) days following the last session scheduled for review. The Council (or highest level
governing body having exclusive jurisdication over the matter) will issue a final written decision which
shall be binding on all parties.

TIMELINES: Failure to process a grievance by the grievant within the time limit, or agreed upon
extensions, shall constitute waiver of the grievance and will be considered resolved on the basis of the
City's last answer. Failure of a management representative to meet the time limits shall cause the
grievance to move automatically to the next step in the procedure. To encourage that grievances are
addressed in a prompt manner the time limits set by this policy are intended to be strictly observed and
may not be extended except in extreme circumstances and then only upon the express written consent of
the parties.

EXCLUSIVE REMEDY: This procedure constitutes the exclusive process for the redress of any
employee grievances as defined herein. However, nothing in this grievance procedure shall prevent any
employee from addressing concerns regarding matters not subject to the grievance procedure with
administration and employees are encouraged to do so. Matters not subject to the grievance procedure
that are raised by employees shall be considered by administration which has final authority, subject to
any applicable Common Couneil policy or directive, to resalve the matter.

ETHICAL AND LLEGAL BUSINESS PRACTICES

The City of Berlin expects the highest standard of ethical conduct and fair dealing from each employee,
officer, director, volunteer and all others associated with the City. This policy provides general guidance
on the ethical principles that we all must follow, but no guideline can anticipate all situations. Employees
should also be guided by basic honesty and good judgment, and be sensitive to others' perceptions and

31




interpretations, If an employee has any questions about this policy, he or she should consult his or her
supervisor, Exceptions to this policy may be made only by the Common Councill. Employees are
expected to promptly disclose anything that may violate this policy. The City will not tolerate retaliation
or retribution against anyone who brings violations to management's attention.

COMPLIANCE: Employees who fail to comply with this policy will be disciplined, which may
include a demand for reimbursement of any losses or damages, termination of employment and referral
for criminal prosecution. Action appropriate to the circumstances will also be taken against supervisors or
others who fail to report a violation or withhold relevant information concerning a violation of this policy.

COMPLYING WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS: All City activities are to be
conducted in compliance with the letter and spirit of all laws and regulations. Employees are charged with
the responsibility of understanding the applicable laws, recognizing potential dangers and knowing when
to seck legal advice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Employees must avoid any interest, influence or relationship
which might conflict or appear to conflict with the best interests of the City of Berlin. Employees must
avoid any situation in which his or her loyalty may be divided and promptly disclose any situation where
an actual or potential conflict may exist. Examples of potential conflict situations include:

« Having a financial interest in any business transaction with the City of Berlin, including any stage
of negotiation of such a transaction.

« Owning or having a significant financial interest in, or other relationship with, a City of Berlin
vendor or supplier, and

e Accepting gifts, entertainment or other benefit from a City of Berlin vendor or supplier

Anyane with a conflict of interest must disclose it to management and remove themselves from
negotiations, deliberations or votes involving the conflict.

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTS: The City of Berlin's financial
statements and all books and records on which they are based must accurately reflect the City's
transactions. All disbursements and receipts must be properly authorized and recorded. Employees must
record and report financial information accurately. Reimbursable business expenses must be reasonable,
accurately reported and supported by receipts. Those responsible for handling or disbursing funds must
assure that all transactions are executed as authorized and recorded to permit financial statements in
accord with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America.

EMPLOYEE PRIVACY AND OTHER CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION:
The City of Berlin collects only personal information about employees that relates to their employment.
Only people with a business-related need to know are given access to this information, and the City
Administrator must authorize any release of the information to others. Personal information, other than
that required to verify employment or pursuant to a legitimate investigatory or legal request (including the
Wisconsin Open Records Act or The Federal Freedom of Information Act) will be released outside the
City only with employee approval.

32




If an employee has access to any confidential information, including private employee information, he or
she is responsible for acting with integrity. Unauthorized disclosure or inappropriate use of confidential
information will not be tolerated.

The City of Berlin adheres to all HIPAA standards for the personal privacy protection of City employees.

GIVING AND RECEIVING GIFTS: Except for tokens and items or services of only nominal,

insignificant, or trivial value, employees may not give or receive money or any gift to or from a supplier,
government official or other organization, Purther, employees and "local government officials” must comply with
Chapter 2, Article VI of the Berlin Code of Ordinances, and Sections 19.59, 946.11, 946.12 and 946.13 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, as to further ethical standards, which may apply to their position. Employees should consult
with the City Administrator and/or City Attorney if he or she has questions in this regard.

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY: Employees must report to work free of drugs, intoxicants,
alcohol, narcotics, or any other controlled substance. Employees may be disciplined, up to and including
termination, for possession, consumption, not being free of, or use of any drugs, drug paraphernalia,
intoxicants, alcohol, narcotics, or any other controlied substance, on or about the City of Berlin's premises
at any time.

Because prescription medication can also affect an individual's demeanor and job performance, it is the
employee's responsibility to notify his or her immediate supervisor if he or she is taking legal prescription
drugs. Such prescription drugs must be given under medical supervision and may not interfere with the
performance of job duties.

Under certain circumstances, an employee's supervisor, upon approval by the City Administrator, may
require an employee to undergo a drug and/or alcohol test when the supervisor or City Administrator has
reasonable suspicion that the employee is in violation of this rule. The employee will be referred to a
certified testing laboratory for completion of the test.

Depending on the seriousness and circumstances of the offense, and at the City Administrator's sole
discretion, an employee who tests positive for drugs and/or alcohol may be referred to a counselling,
rehabilitation, or employee assistance program, at the employee's expense. Refusal to cooperate in this
program may result in discipline, up to and including termination,

The City of Betlin may conduct searches for illegal drugs or alcohol on City facilities or worksites
without prior notice to employees. Such searches may be conducted at any time. Employees are expected
to cooperate fully.

Searches of employees and their personal praperty may be conducted when there is reasonable suspicion
to believe that the employee has violated this policy or when circumstances or workplace conditions
justify such a search. Personal property may include, but is not limited to, purses, boxes, briefcases, as
well as any City of Berlin property that is provided for employees' personal use, such as desks, lockers,
and files.

Also, employees in certain departments may be required to undergo certain drug and alcohol testing as
mandated for purposes of obtaining licensing and certifications, such as for commercial drivers, necessary
for the performance of the employee’s duties.

33




DATING IN THE WORKPLACE: Consensual relationships between employecs, romantic
or sexual, may create an actual or perceived conflict of interest and may give rise to various concerns for
the parties involved. Said relationships are, therefore, deemed contrary to the best interests of the City of
Betlin (hereinafter referred to as “City"). Accordingly, the City strongly discourages relationships
between employees. By its discouragement of relationships between employees, the City does not intend
to inhibit social interaction between employees (e.g. lunch, dinner, attendance at entertainment events,
etc.) that are and should be an important part of the working environment.

It is anticipated that the parties involved in a refationship will appreciate the concerns the City has and
will act in a manner consistent with this policy. If a relationship between employees should develop, it
shall be the obligation of both parties to promptly disclose the existence of the relationship to his or her
Department Head and/or the City Administrator. In the event the relationship involves a supervisor and
subordinate, the obligation to report rests with the supervisor. The Department Head and/or City
Administrator shall inform those within City Management with a need-to-know of the existence of the
relationship. Failure to promptly report a relationship hereunder shall result in discipline, up to and
including discharge.

Upon being informed or learning of the existence of a relationship the City’s Management may take all
steps that, in its discretion, it deems appropriate. At a minimum, the employees involved in the
relationship will not thereafter be permitted to work together on the same matters (including matters
pending at the time disclosure of the relationship is made). Supervisors will not thereafier be permitted to
participate in activities or decisions (e.g. hiring, evaluating, promoting, compensating, assigning,
disciplining, etc.) that may impact the subordinate with whom the supervisor has or has had such a
"relationship.”

In order for the City to effectively address any potentially adverse consequences relationships may have
in the working environment, any employee who believes that he or she has been adversely affected by a
relationship, despite it being reported, is encouraged to make his or her views about the matter known to
his or her Department Head and/or City Administrator.

This policy shall apply without regard to gender and without regard to the sexual orientation of the
participants in a refationship.

POLITICAL ACTIVITY: The purpose of this poficy is to prevent and avoid the appearance of
impropriety on the part of any City employee. City employees are neither appointed to, nor retained in,
the City's service on the basis of their political affiliations or activities.

Officials and employees of the City may attend and express their views at City Council meetings or any
other public meeting. Officials and employees of the City may actively participate in partisan and non-
partisan political activities provided the political activity in which the employee participates shall only be
exercised during off-duty hours and while not in uniform. City employees are not prohibited from
supporting candidates for office nor from contributing labor to candidates and organizations that endorse
candidates. Employees are not permitted to be candidates for City elective oftice or to make public
endorsements of a candidate for City elective office except as permitted by State or Federal Laws.

Any employee desiring to become a candidate for City elective office shall first request a leave of absence
o resign, except as otherwise permitted by State or Federal laws. An employee is considered to be a
candidate for elective office once all statutory requirements have been met to qualify as a candidate.

Political activity must not interfere with job attendance or performance. Employees are not permitted to
solicit or handle political contributions in City elections. They are not permitted to wear or display

34




political badges, buttons, or signs on their person or on City property during on-duty hours, No supervisor
or other person in authority shall solicit any City employee for contributions of money or labor for any
candidate for elective office, or otherwise, compel, or attempt to compel, any employee to support a
candidate for elective office or to enpage in any political activity.

COMPANY EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES: Employees are instructed to keep their
work areas neat and clean and use normal care in handling City property. Employees must report any
broken or damaged equipment to his or her supervisor at once so that proper repairs can be made.

Employees may not use any City property for personal purposes or remove any City property from the
premises without prior written permission from his or her immediate supervisor. Employees must
exercise care, perform required maintenance and follow all operating instructions, safety standards and
guidelines when using City property. Employees will be liable for damage caused to City equipment it
the employee was acting outside the scope of employment or normal employment activities.

Employees must notify his or her supervisor if any equipment or machines appear to be damaged,
defective or in need of repair. This prompt reporting could prevent the equipment's deterioration and
could also help prevent injury to employees. Should an employee have questions about the maintenance
and care of any workplace equipment, he or she should ask his or her supervisor.

Employees must be 18 years or older to operate City owned vehicles, heavy equipment or power tools.
Employees found operating equipment improperly, carelessly, negligently or unsafely, or misusing,
destroying or stealing City property or another person's property, may be disciplined, up to and including
termination. In addition, such employee may be held financially responsible for any loss to City of Berlin
because of such mistreaiment. Removal of notice or notices or inventory tags from City property,
equipment or bulletin boards without authorization may also result in discipline up to and including
termination.

ACCESS TO CITY BUILDINGS/OFFICES: The objective of this policy is to provide
adequate building security for persons and property through the control of keys and electronic access
control cardkeys issued, to assure appropriate access to work areas by employees in municipal buildings,
while providing appropriate access to governmental facilities to the general public. The policy assigns
responsibility for keys and their use to individual employees and City officials and others using the keys
and those allowed to authorize the issuance of keys. For the purposes of this policy, unless otherwise
noted, “key(s)” are defined to include manual “hard” keys as well as electronic access control cardkeys. A
supervisor or City Administrator may remove key holding privileges from any employee who violates

this procedure.

s Employee Procedure for Issuing and Returning Keys: City keys are issued when an employee
begins employment, is promoted or transferred between departments. City keys are returned when
an employee terminates employment, retires, resigns, is promoted, or transferred between
departments. All keys will be issued from and returned to the City Administrator. The holder of a
key to any City facility assumes responsibility for the safekeeping of the key and its use.

» Building Access: The buildings and facilities of the City of Berlin are available for general use
by City employees and the public for governmental purposes. Under normal circumstances, the
buildings will be opened (outside doors unlocked) for business, meetings, scheduled activities,
cte. as required. After-hours access to the buildings may be gained via the use of a building key or
an electronic key card to authorized personnel only.

35




e Lost, Stolen, and Broken Keys: The holder of a key to any City facility assumes responsibility
for the safekeeping of the key and its use. It is understood that the key will not be loaned, issued
to, or made available by any other means to unauthorized persons. Lost keys are to be reported to
the Department Head and {o the City Administrator immediately. Replacement or duplication of a
key will require authorization from the City Administrator. Persons who lose a key may be
required to pay for a replacement and/or rekeying costs.

HANDLING OF AND RESPONSIBILITY OF CITY CREDIT CARDS:

Employees authorized to use any City credit cards are required to sign a credit card policy prior to using
the card. Approved uses are outlined in the Purchasing Card Agreement.

DRESS CODE POLICY:

I, Purpose. City employees present the first impression of the City of Berlin to members of the
public, and therefore, must present a professional image at all times. Professional attire
complements an environment that reflects an efficient, orderly, professionally-operated
organization, The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for employees and management
as to what does and does not constitute appropriate professional attire. This policy is not an all-
inclusive list of what is and is not acceptable and employees must exert judgment in their choice
of clothing that is worn to work. This policy is primarily intended for office workers at City Hall
and other City office seftings. The policy does not apply to employees listed in Section TV below.
This policy shall apply when on City business or otherwise representing the City.

1L Policy.

A. Acceptable Business Casual Attire. A business casual dress code is appropriate for City of Berlin
employees Monday through Thursday.

1. Clothing that projects a professional image. All clothing shall be clean and without rips, holes,
etc.

2. Slacks, dress pants or pants similar in style to Dockers or other makers of cotton, synthetic, wool
or flannel pants. This includes dressy pants that are at least mid-calf in length.

3. Casual dresses, skirts and skorts that are no shorter than two (2) inches above the top of the knee.
Skirts that are split at or below the knee.

4. Casnal shirts, dress shirts, sleeveless sweaters and shirts, golf-type shirts and turtlenecks. Suit
jackets and sport jackets.

5. Walking shoes, tennis shoes, loafers, clogs, boots, flats and dress heels. Open toe shoes
(including sandals) will be acceptable for women only.

6. T-sghirts are not acceptable on non-casual days.

7. Anemployeec may wear non-blue denim jeans, if approved by the Department Head.

B. Acceptable Casual Attire, A casual dress code is appropriate for City of Berlin employees on
Fridays. Employees are expected to present a neat appearance and shall not wear items classified
as “Unacceptable Attire”, as described in Subsection IL.C. below.

Jeans must be in good condition (i.e. not ripped or tattered) and must not be acid washed
. T-shirts and sweatshirts must be in good condition. _
3. Any of the above “Acceptable Business Casual Attire” is also appropriate on casual Fridays.

b

C. Unacceptable Attire. The following is not acceptable attire.

36




1. Clothing that is tight, clothing that is revealing such that either midriff or cleavage is exposed, or

clothing that is sheer.

Clothing that contains offensive words, cartoons or images, etfc.

Clothing that contains political statements, slogans or campaign related information.

If an employee may influence the determination of a contract with a vendor, the employee shall

not wear any type of clothing, footwear, headgear, ctc. that contains the name of a company or

cotporation that the City contracts with or uses as a vendor.

Blue denim jeans (with the exception of Fridays), shorts, bib overalls, sweatpants, exercise pants,

cargo pants, warm-up suits and any spandex-like material pants that can be used for exercise,

Shorts, tight skirts, and mini-skirts. Strapless dresses and spaghetti-strap dresses.

Midriff tops, halter tops and tube tops.

Shower footwear, beach flip-flops, or slippers.

Employees with visible body piercings other than ear will be required to remove the jewelry

while at work.

10. Using a reasonable person standard, other attire which may not be considered appropriate for the
workplace.

i Rl

Lo

TII.Compliance Reguirements.

A. Employees. City of Berlin employees are responsible for complying with the above
éxpectations and guidelines (except those noted in “Section IV” of this policy).
Employees should contact his or her supervisor or the City Administrator if he or she has
a question as to whether or not a certain item is considered acceptable attire.

B. Management. Department Heads and Supervisors are responsible for monitoring
compliance to this policy within their department.

C. Employee Request for Review. An employee who believes they have been treated
unfairly or inappropriately under this policy may ask that the matter be reviewed by the
City Administrator. Human Resources will work with the employee and the Department
to review the matter in a timely manner.

IV.Exceptions.

A. Employees working in the field, performing manual duties or at a worksite calling for
other attire, jeans or similar attite which is appropriate to the type of work being
performed by the employee. This exception must be approved in advance by the
Department Head.

B. This policy shall not apply to employees who wear uniforms or in situations where the
employees’ clothing is addressed through a valid collective bargaining agreement.

C. Exceplions to this policy may be made on a case-by-case basis for religious reasons,
medical conditions and other applicable circumstances. Requests of this nature must be
submitted for review by the Department Head and the City Administrator,

V. Off Duty Employees, Employees shall be prohibited from wearing any City uniform or other
apparel identifying the person as an employee of the City of Berlin outside of working hours,
without express permission from their supervisor. In such instances where express permission is
granted, the employee shall be expected to abide by all conduct standards as if the employee was

on duty.

37




TATTOOS , BODY ART, AND HAIRSTYLES POLICIES

I.  Purpose. The purpose of this policy is to establish rules and regulations regarding tattoos, body
piercing, hair styles and jewelry. It is the policy of the City that all employees maintain the
highest standards of professional appearance when interacting with the public and representing
the City. Maintaining a professional appearance is critically important to fostering public trust
and confidence in city government.

II. Definitions.

Al

III. Tattoos

Al

Inappropriate Tattoo — A tattoo is considered inappropriate if it depicts, describes, or
otherwise refers to sexual conduct, acts, or organs.

Offensive Tattoo -A tattoo is considered offensive if it depicts, describes or refers to
intolerance of, or discrimination against any race, color, preference, creed, religion,
gender, national origin, or; it is commonly associated with any organization or group
which advocates such intolerance or discrimination; or brings discredit upon the City or
violates standards of decency or morality.

Tattoo — Includes any tattoo, scar, intentional scarring, branding, mark, mutilation or
other permanent or temporary body art or modification deliberately placed on the body
for purposes of decoration, ornamentation, or adornment. The term tattoo shall not apply
to medical procedures, i.e. — cosmetic eyeliner, lipstick, etc,

Excessive Tattoo - Excessive tattoos are defined as those covering more than 30 percent

of an exposed body part.

Ornamentation — Shall include body piercing jewelry, intentional body mutilation or

scarring or foreign objects inserted in/under the skin.

Employees with tattoos or temporary decals deemed to be inappropriate, offensive, or
excessive must be suitably covered while on duty, This can be accomplished by one of
following:

1. Wear the appropriate attire that provides majority coverage of tattoo or
temporary decal.

2. Cover the existing tattoo with a skin tone patch or make-up.

3. Have the tattoo{s) removed at the employee’s expense.

38




Tattoos are prohibited in a visible location on the neck, face, head, scalp, below the
elbow, or on the hands of employees.

Inappropriate or excessive tattoo issues will be handled on a case-by-case basis.

The employee’s department head shall determine if a tattoo is inappropriate or excessive
and if the employee will be required to keep it concealed.

No employee may a have a tattoo, whether covered or not, that is offensive. Any
employee discovered to have such a tattoo may be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including termination.

It is recommended that employees planning on receiving a tattoo get prior approval with
their department head to assure that the tattoo will mect this policy.

Body Piercing And Ornamentation Prohibited

A.

Employees shall not wear any item of ornamentation in their nose, eyebrow, tongue or
any other location of their body whether visible or not during duty hours or any duty-
related function. There will be the exception of earrings permitted for employees.
Employees will be permitted to wear up to three (3) earrings per ear, and not detract from
the employee’s professional appearance.

Employees are prohibited from having any visible foreign objects inserted under the skin,
pierced, split or forked tongue, and/or stretched out holes in the ears.

The use of gold, platinum, or other veneers or caps for the purposes of ormamentation is
prohibited. Teeth, whether natural, capped or veneer, will not be ornamented with
designs, jewels, initials, etc.

Contact lenses, if worn on duty, shall be in a natoral eye color. Red, orange, silver and
other unnaturally colored contact lenses, or colors when worn that create an unnatural eye
color, and contact lenses with graphic designs of any kind are prohibited.

Hairstyles. At all times while on duty, employees shall be well-groomed and present a neat
appearance, All hair styles shall be neatly groomed, the length, bulk and appearance of the hair
shall not be ragged, unkempt, or extreme in appearance. Hair style must not preclude the normal
wearing of any uniform headgear equipment, if required.

39




COMPUTER AND COMMUNICATION USE POLICY

This policy shall apply to all telecommunications and computer systems that run on equipment and
peripherals that attach to any computer system for which the City of Bexlin is responsible. These systems
include, but are not limited to Internet access, e-mail, voice mail, any extensions of those systems, or
stand alone computer equipment, which is used to support the operation of the City of Berlin. This
includes, but is not limited to printers, desktop compuiers, notehook computers, laptop computers,
monitors, modems, memory cards, video cards, internet cards, 1/0 cards, cables, pe based fax boards,
keyboards, disk drives, voice mail, cell phones, smart phones, and other communication systems. All
such systems are the property of the City of Betlin and are to be primarily used for City of Berlin
purposes. For those employees having access to such systems, highly limited reasonable personal use of
City of Berlin telecommunications and computer systems is permitted, however, employees should
assume these communications are not private. However, employees are completely prohibited from
utilizing or viewing social media sites such as Facebook, MySpace, Twitter, dating sites, or the like, on
City telecommunications or computer systems. The ONLY exception to utilizing social media sites on
City equipment or on City time is if the site is City sponsored and the activity is part of the employee’s
scope of duties.

The City of Berlin reserves the right to periodically access, monitor, and disclose the contents of ¢-mail,
voice mail messages, text messages and instant messages. Access or disclosure of individual employee
messages may only be done with the approval of the City Administrator.

Employees may not use infernal communication channels or devices, or access to the Internet at work, to
post, store, transmit, download, or distribute any threatening materials; knowingly, recklessly, or
maliciously false materials; or obscene materials including anything constituting or encouraging a
criminal offense, giving rise to civil lability; transmit files that contain a virus or corrupted data; delete
any authority atiributions, legal notices or proprietary designations or labels in a file that is transmitted;
falsify the source or origin of software or other material contained in a file transmitted; use in a manner
that adversely affects the availability of said systems; falsely purport to be a City of Berlin associate or
agent, or otherwise viclate any laws or regulation. Additionally, these channels of communication may
not be used to send chain letters, personal broadcast messages, or copyrighted documents that are not
authorized for reproduction; nor are they to be used to conduct an external job search or open
misaddressed mail.

Employees who abuse the City of Berlin 's telecommunications or computer systems or use them
excessively for non-business putposes may lose these privileges and be subject to disciplinary action up
to and including termination. Employees are responsible and liable for any damage caused to the City by
inappropriate use of communications systems, including but not limited to damages from computer
viruses, or claims of third parties against the City.

Computer terminal passwords are confidential and must be safeguarded at all times. It is the system
user’s responsibility to ensure that passwords are never left unprotected or unsecured. An unprotected
password constitutes a security violation. System users are accountable for all processing done under
their passwords and/or computer. To ensure the protection of individual passwords, passwords are not to
be shared with anyone other than designated management personnel.

Remember that the City is subject to the Public Records law and anything that is found on a City owned

computer or communication device is subject to public scrutiny. Also, use of private devices for public
business may also be subject to public scrutiny under the Public Records laws.

40




TELEPHONE USAGE POLICY: The telephone system (including voice mail} at the City of
Berlin is the property of the City of Berlin and is provided for business purpases. The City of Berlin may
periodically monitor the usage of the telephone systems to ensure compliance with this policy. Therefore,
employees should not consider their conversations on the City of Berlin's telephone system to be private.
Occasional use of the City of Berlin telephone system for personal phone calls while on break is
permitted for calls of short duration. However, all personal fong distance phone calls made on City of
Berlin phones must be documented with a time and date and reported to the City Cletk's office. The
employee responsible for the phone call will be billed accordingly for the call when the phone bill arrives.

SPECIAL CELL PHONE/ELECTRONIC DEVICE USE POLICY:

PURPOSE: The City of Bexlin is firmly committed to employee safety and will do everything possible to
prevent workplace accidents. Crashes attributed to driver distraction are quickly on the rise, in large part
because of widespread use of cell phone and other portable electronic devices behind the wheel.
Researchers across the country have found that response times and attentiveness while using a mobile
device arc as low as those of drunk drivers. To protect employees driving on city business as well as
others on the road, the City has developed this Special Cell Phone/Electronic Device Use Policy. This
Special Policy is in addition to those general policies set forth previously in this Handbook governing use
of the City’s telecommunications and computer systems, which include celf phones and electronic
devices, and it is not intended to supplant such general policies.

SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY: The Speciat Cell Phone/Electronic Device Use Policy applies to all
employees who fit any or all of the following criteria:

sDriving on City business in any vehicle, personal or otherwise
eDriving a company car, whether on City business or not

Placing work-related calls, whether driving on City business or not
sUsing a City-issued cell phone or other electronic device while driving

DEFINITIONS: “Cell Phone” (also known as a mobile phone, smart phone, handheld cell or handset) —
a mobile electronic device that engages in telecommunications including voice calls, text messaging/short
message service (SMS) and/or e-mail. Cell phones also may include features like complete Internet
access, games, multimedia messaging service (MMS), instant messaging (IM) service, digital audio
(MPS) players, cameras, radios and global positioning systems (GPS). Any device that engages these
functions is included in this policy.

“Electronic device” —in this policy, electronic device means any portable apparatus that involves user
interaction. This includes, but is not limited to, laptops, GPS systems, MP3 players, cameras, pagers and
personal digital assistants (PDAs).

“Headset” (also known as hands-free) — an extension of the cell phone either connected to the handset via
cord or wirelessly through Bluetooth technology that aliows the user to engage in voice communication
without holding onto the cell phone itself.

PROCEDURES: The following procedures apply to all employees falling under the conditions outlined
above in SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY.

State Laws: 'The City is not responsible for any traffic violations or parking tickets acquired by violation
of city ordinance, state or federal laws regarding an employee’s driving habits and operation of an
employee’s motor vehicle. Any ticket issued is the employee’s responsibility, even if the ticket is issued

while conducting City business.
41




Note that cell phone driving laws vary greatly by state, and it is the employee’s responsibility to be
familiar with and abide by such laws. This is especially important for employees who travel on City
business. Some states have laws banning all drivers from talking on handsets but permit the use of
headsets. Others have laws prohibiting text messaging (sending, receiving and reading) while behind the
wheel.

All employees must comply with this Special Cell Phone/Electronic Device Use Policy on top of abiding
by any state or local regulations addressing the same matfers.

General Policies

eUse of cell phones while driving is strictly prohibited — this includes all functions of the cell

phone including, but not limited to, phone calls, text messaging/SMS, e-mail, MMS, Internet use,

camera use, etc.

sUse of electronic devices — including laptops, PDAs, cameras and pagers — while driving is

strictly prohibited unless specifically outlined below.

#Voicemail must handle all calls while driving, and calls may only be returned when stopped or
pulled off the road.

sPassengers making or taking calls for the driver is permissible provided the interaction does not
affect the driver’s performance.

sRegular callers must be informed that the employee will not be available while driving and

should be notified of the best times to call based on driving schedule.

sEmployees who receive calls from co-workers who are driving are obligated to ask that the co-

worker call back at a more appropriate time.

#Use of cell phones or electronic devices for personal use during work time, whether while

driving or not, is prohibited entirely.

Headset/Hands-Free Use: The use of headsets or hands-free devices while driving is permissible only if
all of the following apply:

sThe device is pre-approved by the City Administrator for use.

oUse of the device does not cause distraction (i.e., fiddling with the device or taking eyes off the
road to get it to function properly)

s Any dialing or use of the handset is handled while stopped or pulled to the side of the road.
sConversations do not interfere with the driver’s ability to drive safely.

sRoad conditions are generally good and do not threaten the employee’s safety.

Emergency Calls: The only exception to the cell phone use policy is calls placed to 911. If placing or
accepting an emergency call, the employee should keep it short and use a hands-free option if available.
When receiving an emergency call, the employee should ask the caller to briefly hold until he or she can
safely pull the vehicle off the road.

GPS Systems: The City of Berlin understands that sometimes, especially when fravelling in unfamiliar
areas, drivers require assistance with directions. GPS systems are extremely helpful devices, but they
can also be distracting if used improperly. Employees must adhere to the following:

sMounted GPS systems may not block or obstruct the driver’s view in any way.

¢GPS systems must be voice narrated and must not require that the driver look away from the road
to follow instructions.

eEmployees may not program the system while in motion. Programming or otherwise engaging
with the GPS screen may only occur while stopped or while pulled off the road.

42




MP3 and Other Audio Devices: In some cases, worrying about music selection or touching dials and
buttons on the radio, MP3 player or other audio device may be just as dangerous as cell phone use. It
takes eyes and concentration off the road, which is not permissible under this policy. The City of Berlin
does not allow employees use of personal, portable audio devices. However, while the City does not want
to eliminate the employee’s ability to enjoy music while behind the wheel, they must follow these
guidelines:

eEmployees may not take eyes off the road to adjust music settings.

eProgramming music settings while stopped, pulled off the road or before departing is permissible
behaviot.

sEmployees may not under any circumstances use MP3 players or other handheld electronic audio
devices with headphones — not only is it illegal in most states, it also impedes the driver’s ability to
properly hear warning signs, signals or sirens.

PERSONAL MAIL: All mail delivered to the City of Berlin is presumed to be refated to City of
Berlin business. The office personnel may open mail sent to employees at the City of Berlin before being
routed to the employee’s department. If an employee does not wish to have his or her correspondence
handled in this manner, he or she should have it delivered to his or her home. Consistent use of having
personal mail routed to the City of Berlin or using the City of Berlin's address as an employee’s
permanent address is not acceptable.

E-MAIL USAGE: Many employees are authorized to utilize the City of Berlin's e-mail and are
given personal e-mail accounts. Although e-mail is an important communication for our everyday
business, it is also a privilege. No profanity or inappropriate materials may be e-mailed from or to another
City of Berlin e-mail account. E-mail accounts may be accessed and monitored at any time without the
employee's knowledge, It is acceptable for an employee to use his or her personal City of Berlin e-mail
account for a reasonable highly limited amount of personal access. However, excessive personal use and
the transferring of any inappropriate materials via e-mail will not be tolerated and will be subject to
discipline and/or termination. Use of an employee’s City of Berlin e-mail account for personal use should
be limited only to his or her personal time, such as on rest periods, lunch periods or after hours, and is not
permissible while on duty.

INTERNET USAGE: Many employees have computer Internet access in their course of business
with the City. Internet usage is restricted to business use during business hours. Personal Internet usage is
acceptable during an employee's personal time, such as on rest periods, lunch periods or after hours.

SOFTWARE POLICY: The City of Berlin regulates employees' use of its computer software.
Employees may not duplicate any licensed software or related documentation for use, either on City
premises or elsewhere, unless expressly authorized to do so by written agreement with the licenser.
Employees may not provide licensed software to anyone outside the City. Employees should be aware
that the illegal duplication of software may result in the filing of criminal copyright charges by the owners
of the copyrights and can subject both the employee and the City to liability.

All software that the City of Berlin acquires must be registered and propetly inventoried. Employees may
not load personal software that is not related to City business on any City computer without prior
authorization from the City Administrator.

43




SAFETY & EMERGENCY

SAFETY: The City of Berlin is committed to maintaining a safe and healthy environment for all
employees. Employees should report all accidents, injuries, potential safety hazards, safety suggestions
and health and safety related issues immediately to his or her supervisor.

If an employee is injured, a supervisor should be contacted immediately. Employees should seek help
from outside emergency response agencies, if needed. Contact information is posted in the City Clerk's
office.

Employees must complete an Employee's Claim for Worker's Compensation Benefits Form if he or she
has an injury that requires medical attention. If an employee’s injury does not require medical attention,
he or she must still complete a Supervisor and Employee Report of Accident Form in case medical
treatment is later needed and to ensure that any existing safety hazards are corrected. Employees can
obtain the required forms from the City Clerk's office.

A federal law, the Occupational Safety and Tlealth Act, requires that the City keep records of all illnesses
and accidents that occur on the job. OSHA also provides for an employee’s right to know about any
health hazards, which might be present on the job.

In addition, the state Workers' Compensation Act also requires that employees report any illaess or injury
caused by the workplace, no matter how slight. If an employee does not report an injury, he or she may
jeopardize his or her right to collect workers' compensation payments as well as health benefits.
Employees can get the required reporting paperwork from the City Clerk's office.

FIRE. SAFETY: Every employee is responsible for recognizing potential fire dangers and taking an
active role in preventing fires.

Employees are required to observe all OSHA safety requirements and regulations. Flammable materials
are to be stored in covered metal containers. Employees should not block any fire doors, fire exits, fire
extinguishers, windows or doorways. Review the fire escape routes posted in each work area.

EMERGENCY MEASURES: We realize that bad weather or hazardous commuting
conditions may occasionally make it impossible for employees to report to work on time. However,
employees are expected to make a diligent effort to report to work when conditions have improved. If an
employee determines that he or she is unable to report to work because of the conditions, he or she must
inform his or her supervisor as soon as possible. His or her absence will be charged to personal leave or
vacation time, if available. If it becomes necessary to shut down the office due to weather or other
emergency, every effort will be made to notify employees. If there is a question as to whether the office
will be open, employees are instructed to call his or her place of work. If there is no answer within one
hour after the normal start time, assume the office is closed.

44




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I acknowledge that T have received the City of Berlin Employee Handbook and that I have read and
understand the policies.

Iunderstand that this Handbook represents only current policies and benefits, and that it does not create a
contract of employment. City of Berlin retains the right to change these policies and benefits, as it deems
advisable.

Unless expressly proscribed by statute or contract, my employment is "at will." I understand that T have
the right to terminate my employment at any time, with or without cause or notice, and that the City has
the same right. T further understand that my status as an "at will" employee may not be changed except by
Common Council approval.

T understand that I must comply with afl of the provisions of the Handbook to have access to and use City
resources. I also understand that if T do not comply with all provisions of the Handbook, my access to

City resources may be revoked, and I may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge.

I further understand that I am obligated to familiarize myself with the City's safety, health, and emergency
procedures as outlined in this Handbook or in other documents.

Signature Date

Please Print Your Name

45




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING
STAFF REPORT

TO: Common Council

FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator

AGENDA ITEM: 2026 Budget Amendment and recognition of capital funds
MEETING DATE: February 3, 2026

BACKGROUND

The Police Department is scheduled to order a squad car and replace tasers that have come to end of life
later this year. It has been discovered that monies have not been budgeted for and placed in capital for
these items since 2024. To remedy this, monies will be taken from reserves and moved to the capital
account within the Police Department Budget. Each year, $35,000 was intended to go into the capital
fund for the squad and $3,000 for the tasers. This will result in the moving of $114,000.

$105,000 from Reserve Fund Balance Account #100-00-34305-000 to Vehicle Equip Replacement — Police
Account #400-20-52710-810 {$35,000 for 2024, 2025, 2026)

$9,000 from Reserve Fund Balance Account #100-00-34305-000 to Assigned: PD Radios/Taser Account
#400-20-34156-000 (53,000 for 2024, 2025, 2026)

$114,000 to be moved from Reserves to Capital

SUGGESTED MOTION
Motion to recommend to the Common Council to approve an amendment to the 2026 City Budget,

placing $38,000 into the Police Department’s Capital Fund from reserves and recognizing that $38,000
will also be moved into the fund for both the years 2024 and 2025, recognizing that these funds were
unbudgeted at that time. Total reserves to be moved into the Capital Funds of $114,000.




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING

STAFF REPORT
T0: Common Council
FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator
AGENDA ITEM: At Large representation on City Council
MEETING DATE: February 3, 2026
BACKGROUND

In the upcoming Spring election, and in last year’s spring election, there will be/have been Aldermanic
seat races that will not/did not have a candidate printed on the ballot — meaning no one turned in
papers to be put on the ballot by the early January deadline.

As it stands, no one filed papers to be on the ballot to represent Ward 3 or Ward 5. So, it is plausible
that the Council may need to appoint 2 members following the Spring Election. if this is the case, the
same process will be utilized as last year. (Those interested in representing these wards would be asked
to apply, the Council would interview, and then appoint.)
Should this come to fruition, 5 of the 6 wards would be on the 2027 Spring Election ballot.
Even numbered wards would be up per the 2 year cycle (Wards 2, 4 and 6).
The second year of the two year term for wards 3 and 5 would be on the ballot as well.
Ward 6 is on the ballot this year due to the appointment following the 2025
Spring Election.

The Councit may wish to consider changing the representation of the City from one Council member per
aldermanic ward to 6 at large Council members. This change would allow all eligible adult Berlin
residents to run for any Council seat, every year.

in preparation for this initial discussion, | reached out to the League of Wisconsin Municipalities to
inquire how a City would go about changing to At Large representation. In general, and without a deep
dive into this, it would appear that the City Council could amend the City’s Charter ordinance. This
would require a 2/3s vote of the Council, publication in the paper, and a 60 day waiting period {to allow
residents to file a petition requiring the amendment to go to referendum prior to implementation), and
then implementation.

Enclosed is a very rough draft of potential changes to the ordinance to allow this change.

Please provide guidance as to whether or not staff should pursue this option for your further
consideration.




Sec. 2-10. Ward boundaries.

(a) There shall be seven wards But enly sicaldermaniceistriets within the city, and the boundaries of each ward
shall be as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Ward 1. Commencing at the East City Limit line at the centerline of East Waushara Street; thence South
along the East City Limit line to the centerline of East Marquette Street; thence to the west/southwest
along the centerline of East Marquette Street to the intersection of East Marquette Street and Bates
Street; thence South along the centerline of Bates Street to the intersection of Bates Street and East
Berlin Street; thence west along the centerline of East Berlin Street to the intersection of East Berlin
Street and Oak Street; thence South along the centerline of Oak Street to the intersection of Oak Street
and East Liberty Street; thence West along the centerline of East Liberty Street to the intersection of
East Liberty Street and North Wisconsin Street; thence North along the centerline of North Wisconsin
Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and West Cumberland Street; thence West along
the centerline of West Cumberland Street to the intersection of West Cumberland Street and River
Drive; thence North along the centerline of River Drive to West Waushara Street; thence East along the
centerline of Waushara Street to the Point of Beginning. (Green Lake County)

Ward 2. Commencing at the intersection of Huron and Wisconsin Streets; thence North along the
centerline of North Wisconsin Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and East Liberty
Street; thence East along the centerline of East Liberty Street to the intersection of East Liberty Street
and Oak Street; thence North along the centerline of Oak Street to the intersection of Oak Street and
East Berlin Street; thence East along the centerline of East Berlin Street to the intersection of East
Berlin Street and Bates Street; thence North along the centerline of Bates Street to the intersection of
Bates Street and East Margquette Street; thence east/northeast along the centerline of East Marquette
Street to the East City Limits line; thence South along the East City Limits line to the intersection of a
point where the northwest corner of Lot 6 of East Ridge Subdivision located in the SW % Section 2—
T17N—R 13E meets the East City Limit line; thence following the Lot 6 boundaries as platted in the East
Ridge Subdivision to the east and south to the southeast corner of said Lot 6; thence west along the
southern boundary of Lot 6 of East Ridge Subdivision to the East City Limits line; thence south along the
East City Limits line to the intersection with East Huron Street; thence West along the centerline of East
Huron Street to the Point of Beginning on Wisconsin Street. (Green Lake County)

Ward 3. Commencing at the point where West Huron Street meets the Fox River; thence continuing
south following the eastern shore of the Fox River to the southern city limits line; thence east along the
southern city limit line to the southeast city limits corner; thence north along the east city limits line to
the point where the east city limits line intersects with East Huron Street; thence west along the
centerline of Huron Street to the point of beginning; and also

A parcel of land located in part of the southwest % of the northwest % and in part of the northwest % of
the southwest % of Section 11, T17N, R13E, Town of Berlin, Green Lake County, Wisconsin, being more
particularly described as follows: Commencing at the west % corner of said Section 11; thence S 00
degrees 05' 44" east along the west line of the southwest %, 445.50 feet to the point of beginning;
thence S 89 degrees 39' 21" E 400.96 feet; thence N 00 degrees 05' 44" W 738.00 feet to the southerly
right-of-way line of the vacated railroad (now Nature Trail); thence N 85 degrees 52' 32" E along said
right-of-way 932.06 feet to the east line of the SW % of the NW %, thence S 00 degrees 02' 13" E 365.13
feet to the northeast corner of the northwest %, of the southwest %, thence S 00 degrees 00' 52" W
along the east line of the NW % of the SW %, 844.80 feet; thence S 88 degrees 46' 47" W 1,328.97 feet
to the west line of the southwest %, thence N 00 degrees 05' 44" W 435.60 feet to the point of
beginning, containing 29.255 acres more or less. (Green Lake County).

Created: 2025-97-24 ©9:26:03 [EST]

(Supp. No. 35)

Page 1 of 6



{4) Ward 4. Commencing at the intersection of Broadway Street and the west line of the Fox River; thence
traveling south along the western shore of the Fox River to the Southern City Limits Line; thence West
along the southern boundary line of the City Limits to the Southwest corner of the City Limits; thence
North on the western boundary line of the City Limits Line and continuing north along the center line of
South Hunter Street to a point where South Hunter Street travels to the west; thence west along the
southern line of South Hunter Street to the Northeast corner of Lot 3, CSM #1838, Vol 8, Page 1838 as
recorded in the Certified Survey Maps of Green Lake County; South along the east line of said Lot 3,
CSM #1838; west along the Southern line of said Lot 3, CSM #1838; thence North along the West line of
CSM #1838; East to the Northwest corner of Lot 4, CSM #1838; thence south along the West boundary
of Lot 4 CSM #1838; thence East along the South boundary of Lot 4 CSM #1838; thence North along the
East boundary of Lot 4, CSM #1838 to the intersection at Broadway; thence East along the centerline of
Broadway to the intersection of Broadway and McKittrick Street; thence South along the centeriine of
McKittrick Street to the intersection of McKittrick Street and Southwest Ceresco Street; thence East
along the centerline of Southwest Ceresco Street to the intersection of Southwest Ceresco and South
Washington Street; thence North along the centerline of South Washington Street, continuing North
along the centerline of North Washington Street, to the intersection of North Washington and Webster
Street; thence East along the centerline of Webster Street to the intersection of Webster Street and
Mill Street, thence South along the centerline of Mill Street to the intersection of Mill Street and
Broadway Street, thence East along the centerline of Broadway Street to the Point of Beginning. {Green
Lake County)

(5} Ward 5. Commencing at a point where the centerline of Broadway intersects with the western shore of
the Fox River, thence foflowing the western shore of the Fox River o the centerline of Darling Street as
extended to the Fox River; thence west along the centerline of Darling Street to the intersection of
Darling Street and North Washington Street; thence North along the centerline of North Washington
Street to the intersection of North Washington Sireet and Northwest Cumberland Street; thence West
along the centerline of Northwest Cumberland Street to intersection of Northwest Cumberland and
Jasmine Drive; thence South along the centerline of Jasmine Drive to the intersection of Jasmine Drive
and Seward Street; thence West along the centerline of Seward Street to the intersection of Seward
Street and North Hunter Street; thence South along the centerline of North Hunter Street to the
northeast corner line of Certified Survey Map #3185, Vol 17, Page #3185 {as extended to centerline of
roadway) as recorded in the Certified Survey Maps of Green Lake County; thence West on the North
line of said CSM #3185; South along the West line of CSM #3185; thence East along the South line of
CSM #3185 to the point of intersection with North Hunter Street and Broadway Street; thence
continuing along the centerline of Broadway Street to the intersection of Broadway Street and
McKittrick Street; thence South along the centerline of McKittrick Street to the intersection of
McKittrick Street and Southwest Ceresco Street; thence East along the centerline of Southwest Ceresco
Street to the intersection of Southwest Ceresco and South Washington Street; thence North along the
centerline of South Washington Street, continuing North along the centerline of North Washington
Street to the intersection of North Washington Street and Webster Street; thence East along the
centerline of Webster Street to the intersection of Webster Street and Mill Street, thence south along
the centerline of Mili Street to the intersection of Mill Street and Broadway Street, thence east along
the centerline of Broadway Street to the Fox River being the Point of Beginning. {Green Lake County).

{6) Waord 6. Commencing at the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and Huron Street; thence north
along the centerline of North Wisconsin Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and West
Cumberland Street; thence west along the centerline of West Cumberland Street to the intersection of
West Cumberland Street and River Drive; thence north along the centerline of River Drive to the
intersection River Drive and West Waushara Street; thence west along the centerline of West
Waushara Street to the western shore of the Fox River, thence continuing west along the north city
limit boundary line to North Hunter $treet; thence south on the centerline of North Hunter Street to
the intersection of North Hunter and Seward Street, thence east along the centerline of Seward Street

Created: 2025-97-24 89:26183 [EST}
{Supp. No. 35}

Page 20of 6




to the intersection of Seward Street and Jasmine Drive; thence north along the centerline of Jasmine
Drive to the intersection of Jasmine Drive and Northwest Cumberland Street; thence east along
Northwest Cumberland Street to the intersection of NW Cumberland and North Washington Street;
thence south along the centerline of North Washington Street to the intersection of North Washington
Street and Darling Street; thence east on the centerline of Darling Street as extended to the Fox River;
thence crossing the Fox River and continuing east to the eastern shores of the Fox River; thence
southeast along the eastern shore of the Fox River to the centerline of Huron Street; thence east along
the centerline of West Huron Street to the POB. (Green Lake County).

(7) Ward 7. Commencing at the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and Waushara Street, thence west
along the centerline of East Waushara Street to the eastern shore of the Fox River, thence
northeasterly along the eastern shore of the Fox River to the intersection of North Wisconsin
Street/County Trunk "XX", thence north along the centerline of North Wisconsin Street/County Trunk
"XX" to the northern boundary line of the city, thence easterly and southerly along the northern and
eastern boundary lines of the city, including any and all newly annexed lands (since 1991), to a point
where the eastern boundary line of the city intersects with East Waushara Street; thence west along
the center of East Waushara Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street, the point of
beginning. (Waushara County).

Sec. 2-41. Constitution of common council.

The mayor and alderpersons of the city shall constitute the common council. The common council shall be
vested with all the powers of the city not specifically given other officers, as well as those powers set forth
elsewhere throughout this Code.

(Code 1989, § 2-2-1)

Sec. 2-42, Alderpersons.

(a)  Election, term, number. The city shall have six alderpersons in addition to the mayor, who is a member of the
common council by virtue of his office as mayor. There shall be one alderperson elected from each ward in
the city. The term of each alderperson shall be for a period of two years. | presenting wards

in odd—numbered years.

(b) Appointment as mayor. An alderperson shall be eligible for appointment as mayor to fill an unexpired term.

(Code 1989, § 2-2-2)

Created: 2025-07-24 €9:26:@3 [EST]
(Supp. No. 35)

Page 3of 6




Potential amended language:

There shall be six alderpersons elected at large in the city.

Potential amended paragraphs:

(a)
(1)

(2)

(3)

There shall be seven wards within the city, and the boundaries of each ward shall be as follows:

Ward 1. Commencing at the East City Limit line at the centerline of East Waushara Street; thence South
along the East City Limit line to the centerline of East Marquette Street; thence to the west/southwest
along the centerline of East Marquette Street to the intersection of East Marquette Street and Bates
Street; thence South along the centerline of Bates Street to the intersection of Bates Street and East
Berlin Street; thence west along the centerline of East Berlin Street to the intersection of East Berlin
Street and Oak Street; thence South along the centerline of Oak Street to the intersection of Oak Street
and East Liberty Street; thence West along the centerline of East Liberty Street to the intersection of
East Liberty Street and North Wisconsin Street; thence North along the centerline of North Wisconsin
Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and West Cumberland Street; thence West along
the centerline of West Cumberland Street to the intersection of West Cumberland Street and River
Drive; thence North along the centerline of River Drive to West Waushara Street; thence East along the
centerline of Waushara Street to the Point of Beginning. (Green Lake County)

Ward 2. Commencing at the intersection of Huron and Wisconsin Streets; thence North along the
centerline of North Wisconsin Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and East Liberty
Street; thence East along the centerline of East Liberty Street to the intersection of East Liberty Street
and Oak Street; thence North along the centerline of Oak Street to the intersection of Oak Street and
East Berlin Street; thence East along the centerline of East Berlin Street to the intersection of East
Berlin Street and Bates Street; thence North along the centerline of Bates Street to the intersection of
Bates Street and East Marquette Street; thence east/northeast along the centerline of East Marquette
Street to the East City Limits line; thence South along the East City Limits line to the intersection of a
point where the northwest corner of Lot 6 of East Ridge Subdivision located in the SW % Section 2—
T17N—R 13E meets the East City Limit line; thence following the Lot 6 boundaries as platted in the East
Ridge Subdivision to the east and south to the southeast corner of said Lot 6; thence west along the
southern boundary of Lot 6 of East Ridge Subdivision to the East City Limits line; thence south along the
East City Limits line to the intersection with East Huron Street; thence West along the centerline of East
Huron Street to the Point of Beginning on Wisconsin Street. (Green Lake County)

Ward 3. Commencing at the point where West Huron Street meets the Fox River; thence continuing
south following the eastern shore of the Fox River to the southern city limits line; thence east along the
southern city limit line to the southeast city limits corner; thence north along the east city limits line to
the point where the east city limits line intersects with East Huron Street; thence west along the
centerline of Huron Street to the point of beginning; and also

Created: 2025-07-24 ©9:26:03 [EST]

(Supp. No. 35)

Page 4 of 6




A parcel of land focated in part of the southwest % of the northwest % and in part of the northwest % of
the southwest % of Section 11, T17N, R13E, Town of Berlin, Green Lake County, Wisconsin, being more
particularly described as follows: Commencing at the west % corner of said Section 11; thence S 00
degrees 05" 44" east along the west line of the southwest %, 445.50 feet to the point of beginning;
thence S 89 degrees 39° 21" £ 400.96 feet; thence N 00 degrees 05' 44" W 738.00 feet to the southerly
right-of-way line of the vacated rallroad (now Nature Trail); thence N 85 degrees 52' 32" E along said
right-of-way 932.06 feet to the east line of the SW % of the NW %, thence S 00 degrees 02' 13" E 365.13
feet to the northeast corner of the northwest %, of the southwest %, thence S 00 degrees 00 52" W
along the east line of the NW % of the SW %, 844.80 feet; thence S 88 degrees 46' 47" W 1,328.97 feet
to the west line of the southwest %, thence N 00 degrees 05° 44" W 435,60 feet to the point of
beginning, containing 29.255 acres more or less. {Green Lake County}.

(4)  Ward 4. Commencing at the intersection of Broadway Street and the west line of the Fox River; thence
traveling south along the western shore of the Fox River to the Southern City Limits Line; thence West
along the southern boundary line of the City Limits to the Southwest corner of the City Limits; thence
North on the western boundary line of the City Limits Line and continuing north along the center line of
South Hunter Street to a point where South Hunter Street travels to the west; thence west along the
southern line of South Hunter Street to the Northeast corner of Lot 3, CSM #1838, Vol 8, Page 1838 as
recorded in the Certified Survey Maps of Green Lake County; South along the east line of said Lot 3,
CSM #1838; west along the Southern line of said Lot 3, CSM #1838; thence North along the West line of
CSM #1838; East to the Northwest corner of Lot 4, CSM #1838; thence south along the West boundary
of Lot 4 CSM #1838; thence East along the South boundary of Lot 4 CSM #1838; thence North along the
East boundary of Lot 4, CSM #1838 to the intersection at Broadway; thence East along the centerline of
Broadway to the intersection of Broadway and McKittrick Street; thence South along the centerline of
McKittrick Street to the intersection of McKittrick Street and Southwest Ceresco Street; thence East
along the centerline of Southwest Ceresco Street to the intersection of Southwest Ceresco and South
Washington Street; thence North along the centerline of South Washington Street, continuing North
along the centerline of North Washington Street, to the intersection of North Washington and Webster
Street; thence East along the centerline of Webster Street to the intersection of Webster Street and
Mill Street, thence South along the centerline of Mill Street to the intersection of Mill Street and
Broadway Street, thence East along the centerline of Broadway Street to the Point of Beginning. (Green
Lake County)

(5} Ward 5. Commencing at a point where the centerline of Broadway intersects with the western shore of
the Fox River, thence following the western share of the Fox River to the centerline of Darling Street as
extended to the Fox River; thence west along the centerline of Darling Street to the intersection of
Darling Street and North Washington Street; thence North along the centeriine of North Washington
Street to the intersection of North Washington Street and Northwest Cumberland Street; thence West
along the centerline of Northwest Cumberland Street to intersection of Northwest Cumberland and
Jasmine Drive; thenice South along the centerline of Jasmine Drive to the intersection of Jasmine Drive
and Seward Street; thence West along the centerline of Seward Street to the intersection of Seward
Street and North Hunter Street; thence South along the centerline of North Hunter Street to the
northeast corner line of Certified Survey Map #3185, Vol 17, Page #3185 (as extended to centerline of
roadway) as recorded in the Certified Survey Maps of Green Lake County; thence West on the North
fine of said CSM #3185; South along the West line of CSM #3185; thence East along the South line of
CSM #3185 to the point of intersection with North Hunter Street and Broadway Street; thence
continuing along the centerline of Broadway Street to the intersection of Broadway Street and
McKittrick Street; thence South along the centerline of McKittrick Street to the intersection of
McKittrick Street and Southwest Ceresco Street; thence Fast along the centerline of Southwest Ceresco
Street to the intersection of Southwest Ceresco and South Washington Street; thence North along the
centerfine of South Washington Street, continuing North along the centerline of North Washington

_ Street to the intersection of North Washington Street and Webster Street; thence East along the

Created: 2825-67-24 ©9:26:83 [EST]
(Supp. No. 35)

Page 5 of 6




centerline of Webster Street to the intersection of Webster Street and Mill Street, thence south along
the centerline of Mill Street to the intersection of Mill Street and Broadway Street, thence east along
the centerline of Broadway Street to the Fox River being the Point of Beginning. {Green Lake County).

(6) Ward 6. Commencing at the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and Huron Street; thence north
along the centerline of North Wisconsin Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and West
Cumberland Street; thence west along the centerline of West Cumberland Street to the intersection of
West Cumberland Street and River Drive; thence north along the centerline of River Drive to the
intersection River Drive and West Waushara Street; thence west along the centerline of West
Waushara Street to the western shore of the Fox River, thence continuing west along the north city
limit boundary line to North Hunter Street; thence south on the centerline of North Hunter Street to
the intersection of North Hunter and Seward Street, thence east along the centerline of Seward Street
to the intersection of Seward Street and lasmine Drive; thence north along the centerline of Jasmine
Drive to the intersection of Jasmine Drive and Northwest Cumberland Street; thence east along
Northwest Cumberland Street to the intersection of NW Cumberland and North Washington Street;
thence south along the centerline of North Washington Street to the intersection of North Washington
Street and Darling Street; thence east on the centerline of Darling Street as extended to the Fox River;
thence crossing the Fox River and continuing east to the eastern shores of the Fox River; thence
southeast along the eastern shore of the Fox River to the centerline of Huron Street; thence east along
the centerline of West Huron Street to the POB. {Green Lake County).

{7) Ward 7. Commencing at the intersection of North Wisconsin Street and Waushara Street, thence west
along the centerline of East Waushara Street to the eastern shore of the Fox River, thence
northeasterly along the eastern shore of the Fox River to the intersection of North Wisconsin
Street/County Trunk "XX", thence north along the centerline of North Wisconsin Street/County Trunk
"XX" to the northern boundary line of the city, thence easterly and southerly along the northern and
eastern boundary lines of the city, including any and all newly annexed lands (since 1991), to a point
where the eastern boundary line of the city intersects with East Waushara Street; thence west along
the center of East Waushara Street to the intersection of North Wisconsin Street, the point of
beginning. (Waushara County).

(a) Election, term, number. The city shall have six alderpersons in addition to the mayor, who is a member of
the common council by virtue of his office as mayor. There shall be six alderpersons elected at large in
the city. The term of each alderperson shall be for a period of two years. Three alderpersons shall be
elected in even-numbered years, and three shall be elected in odd-numbered years.

Created: 2025-87-2¢ 89:26:83 [EST]

{Supp. No. 35}

Page 6 of 6




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING
STAFF REPORT

TO: Common Council

FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator

AGENDA ITEM: Request for Proposals for the Future of the Berlin Aquatic Center
MEETING DATE: February 3, 2026

BACKGROUND

At the January 2026 Regular Common Council Meeting, staff was instructed to draft an RFP that would
solicit proposals to: 1 Repair the pool as a single project; 2) Repair the pool in phases; 3) Demolition and
deliver shovel-ready site; 4} Propose another option for the site. Once drafted, the RFP is to be available '
for 90 days.

Enclosed please find a preliminary draft of the requested RPF. Please provide direction as to any
revisions/additions the Council would like prior issuance.




Request for Proposals (RFP)

City of Berlin

RFP No.: 01 Aquatic Center

Project Title: The Future of the Berlin Aquatic Center - Pool Facility: Repair, Phased Repair,
Demolition & Site Readiness, or Alternate Reuse

Issue Date: [Month Day, Year]
Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting: [Date, Time, Address]
Final Questions Due: [Date, Time, Time Zone]
Proposals Due: [Date, Time, Time Zone]
Submission Method: Email to cityadministrator@citiyofberlin.wi.gov or
Mail/deliver to City of Berlin
108 N Capron Street
P.O. Box 272
Berlin, WI 54923
Procurement Contact: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator
(920) 361-5400
cityadministrator@cityofberlin.wi.gov

1. Introduction & Background

City of Berlin invites qualified firms to submit proposals to address the future of the Berlin Aquatic
Center. The Berlin Aquatic Center, 255 Webster Street, (public pool) was originally constructed in
1992. The facility includes bathhouse, below ground mechanical building, two surge tanks and pool
vessel. The pool vessel has zero-depth entry, slide plunge area, six 25-yard lap lane area and a diving
well. The facility also has deck area, lighting, fencing, site utilities, and parking. The pool has
experienced deterioration, please see the attached "Evaluation Summary of Existing Outdoor
Swimming Pool Facility” completed by Ramaker in August 2024. The Aquatic Center will be closed
for the 2026 season.

The City seeks proposals under four options:

e Option A: Repair (and possibly enhance — enhancements should be listed as alternates or

optional addons) as a single, comprehensive project.
o Option B: Repair (and possibly enhance — enhancements should be listed as alternates or

optional addons) as a phased project over 3-5 years.
e Option C: Demolition of pool and appurtenances; deliver a shovel-ready site for future

development.



» Option D: Propose an alternate option/use for the pool/site. Options may include
ownership by a private entity, non-profit organization or the City of Berlin. Proposals are not
required to continue the operation of the pool.

Offerors may submit on one or multiple options. The City may award one option, multiple options, or
no award, at its sole discretion. Cost estimates provided with the proposals may be utilized by the
City in the event the Council chooses to go to referendum regarding the funding/future of the Berlin
Aguatic Center.

2. Project Goals & Objectives

» Ensure public safety and code compliance.

» Provide cost-effective solutions with clear lifecycle and Operational and Maintenance
implications.

» [mprove accessibility (ADA/ABA), sustainability, and resilience.

« Minimize disruption and construction impacts to the neighborhood.

» For Option D, ensure the site becomes/remains an asset to the community.

w

Site & Existing Conditions (Summary)

¢ Address: 255 Webster Street, portion of Parcel 206013730100

« Zoning / Land Use: Zoned C-1 Conservancy, stormwater and sanitary sewer on site. Option
D proposals may require rezoning of the site, which would be at the discretion of the Plan
Commission and City Council.

« Utilities: Fully served site

« Known Constraints: Should the site change ownership, the parcel would require division
and utility easements for future operation of the City’s stormwater, sanitary and water

utilities.
s Available Documents (Appendices):
o AT As-builts
o A2: Evaluation Summary of Existing Outdoor Swimming Pool Facility
o A3: Water/sewer capacity letters
o A4 Site map — preliminary/draft easement/lot division map
o Ab: Insurance & Bonding requirements

Note: Offerors are responsible for verifying existing conditions. The City makes no warranty as to the
completeness or accuracy of historical documents.




4. Scope of Work by Option

Option A — Comprehensive Repair (Single Project)
Minimum scope elements:

o Detailed assessment verification; confirm extents of structural, mechanical, electrical, and
plumbing (MEP) defects. Descriptions listed below may not be a comprehensive list,
proposer shall review structures and propose all necessary and recommended
repairs/replacements.

» Pool area deck and deck equipment: Structural repairs (including but not limited to sinking
of plunge area), stair enhancement, ladder rehabilitation, lifeguard chair repair/replacement,
diving board repair/replacement, tile/coping repair/replacement, expansion joint rehab, deck
drainage improvements (if necessary), installation of pool ADA lift.

e Pool Basin: Pool piping repair/replacement, pool perimeter overflow gutter
repair/replacement, main drains, repair/replacement {make compliant with sumps and
pumps), repaint basin shell.

+ Waterslide and Drop Slides: Refinish slides. Update stairs to be ADA compliant.

s Pool Surge Tanks: Review and make recommendations for repairs/replacement if needed.

» Water Treatment Equipment (circulation & fiftration): Mechanical room structure, pumps
(ensure State compliance), filters, valves, piping, chemical systems, automation/controls,
VFDs, pool heat exchangers, for repairs/replacement if needed.

+ Lighting: Review and make recommendations for repairs/replacement if needed.

s Electrical System: Review and make recommendations for repairs/replacement if needed.

+ Bathhouse & support: Review and make recommendations for repairs/replacement of
exterior and interior if needed. Code upgrades as needed (electrical, plumbing, fire, egress),
lockers/restrooms, family rooms, roof/envelope repairs, staff areas, lifeguard facilities.

« Site/Fencing: Review and make recommendations for repairs/replacement if needed.

¢ Accessibility: Full ADA compliance for the pool and bathhouse facilities, including but not
limited to, ADA-compliant routes, pool lifts/ramps, restrooms/fixtures, work areas, signage,
parking, entrances.

+ Safety & code: NEC, IBC/IPC/IMC/IFC as adopted; state/local pool codes; fencing/gates;
lighting; entrapment prevention; GFCI/AFCI; backflow prevention.

» Water/energy efficiency: Review and recommend if needed, low-flow fixtures, heat
recovery where feasible, LED lighting, controls.

+ Commissioning & training: Functional testing, O\&M manuals, staff training, closeout.

Deliverables: 30/60/90/IFC design submittals, stamped drawings, specs, schedule, phasing/closures
plan (if needed), QA/QC plan, permits, as-builts, warranties- upon approval of proposal.




Option B — Phased Repair (Multiyear)

Approach: Develop a phased capital plan that sequences work to maintain partial operations
where/if feasible and align with annual budgets.

Minimum scope elements:

« Prioritized deficiency list with risk and consequence ratings.

+ Phase packaging: Year-by-year scopes, cost, schedule, outage windows, interim safety
measures.

« Temporary systems or bypass arrangements to maintain operations.

« Escalation modeling, cash flow, and lifecycle cost analysis (10-20 years).

+ Same technical standards as Option A for each phase.

Deliverables: Phased master plan, phase design packages, cost model with escalation, operational
impact plan, permitting plan, commissioning and training per phase, as-builts per phase.

Option C — Demolition & Shovel-Ready Site

Minimum scope elements:

« Demolition of pool shell, decks, foundations, and associated structures as indicated; safe
removal/abandonment of utilities per code.

o Hazardous materials survey & abatement (as needed) per federal/state/local regulations.

« Protection of adjacent facilities, trees, and utilities; traffic and site safety plan.

» Backfill & grading: Import/export, compaction to geotech specs, engineered fill, subgrade
preparation.

» Stormwater: Interim/permanent controls; erosion and sediment control.

+ Shovel-ready deliverable: Level, compacted building pad(s) and/or open space graded per
City of Berlin direction; utility stubs and capacity confirmation; updated survey.

e Environmental closeout documentation (waste manifests, air monitoring, abatement reports).

» Final site restoration (temporary seed/mulch or permanent landscaping as directed).

Deliverables: Demo plan set, StormWater Pollution Prevention Plan/Erosion & Sediment control
plans, traffic control plan, abatement reports, compaction test results, final survey and utility map,
closeout documentation.




Option D — Alternate Reuse Proposal

Eligible concepts: Community recreation with aquatic remaining (e.g., splash pad conversion,
reduced-footprint pool, etc.), non-aquatic civic use (e.g., courts, skate/park amenities, dog park,), or
other compatible public uses, or use and ownership by a non-profit organization; or use and
ownership by a private entity.

Minimum scope elements:

+ Concept plan(s) with programming, operations model, and community benefits.

+ Capital cost, Operation & Maintenance projections (10-20 years), revenue potential (if
applicable), and funding/partnership structures.

+ Zoning/land use compliance, accessibility, safety, and sustainability features,

» Phasing and constructability approach.

« Engagement plan: how the concept would be vetted with the public.

Deliverables: Concept report, preliminary drawings, opinion of probable cost, schedule, operational
plan, funding/partnership framework.

Change in ownership would require lot division/utility easements to accommodate existing utility
facilities.

5. Proposal Requirements

Proposal format (succinct appreciated, promotional materials not necessary):

1. Cover Letter

2. Team & Qualifications: Firm background, licenses, key personnel resumes, relevant
pool/park/civic project experience (last 10 years), references.

3. Technical Solution by Option: Methods, materials, standards, and innovations.
Schedule: Baseline with critical path; milestones; assumptions; weather/seasonality plan.

5. Price Proposal & Forms: Use the Pricing Forms (Section 9).




6. Procurement Instructions

e Questions: Submit in writing to the City Administrator by the deadline. Responses will be via
Addenda posted on the City’s website https://cityofberlin.net/request-for-proposal/

o Pre-Proposal Meeting/Site Visit: There will be a Voluntary pre-proposal meeting at the
Berlin Aquatic Center on DATE at TIME. The meeting will include a site tour and opportunity
to walk around and view the site/facilities/amenities.

e Submission: Email to cityadministrator@citiyofberlin.wi.gov or

Mail/deliver to City of Berlin
108 N Capron Street
P.O. Box 272
Berlin, WI 54923

labeled 01 Aquatic Center RFP - Pool Facility Options”.

e Late proposals will not be accepted.
o Proposal Validity: Proposals must be valid for at least 120 days from submission due date.

« Right to Reject/Negotiate: The City may accept/reject any proposals, waive informalities,
request BAFOs, and negotiate scope/price.

7. Minimum Standards, Codes & Permits

o Applicable building/plumbing/mechanical/electrical/fire codes as adopted by City of
Berlin/State of Wisconsin, state/local public pool codes, OSHA, ADA/ABA, and accessibility
standards.

o Environmental/hazardous materials regulations (federal/state/local), stormwater and erosion
control requirements, Dig Safe/utility locate laws.

e Permits: Offeror responsible for preparing and obtaining all permits/approvals (plan review,
building, electrical, plumbing, demo, right-of-way, stormwater, health department pool
permits).

o Materials 8 Workmanship: Industry standards; new-in-box materials unless otherwise
specified; warranties as proposed and not less than 3 years.



8. Insurance, Bonds & Legal

s [nsurance {(minimums):

Commercial General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence / $2,000,000 aggregate

Auto Liability: [1,000,00] combined single [imit

Workers’ Compensation: Statutory + Employer’s Liability $1,000,000

Professional Liability (if design/design-build): $1,000,000 each claim

Pollution Liability (for demo/abatement): $1,000,000

The City as additional insured (CG 20 10 & CG 20 37 or equivalent); waiver of

subrogation; primary & non-contributory.

« Bonds: Bid Bond 5%, Performance & Payment Bonds [100% of contract price] for
construction/demaolition scopes.

» Contract: In form acceptable to the City.

» Licensing & Registration: Firms must hold all required licenses at time of submission.

« Prevailing Wage / Local Hire / DBE Goals: [If applicable, specify].

+ Non-Discrimination 8 EEO: Required.

cC o O ©o ©

9. Pricing Forms (Complete as Applicable)

Note: Provide line-item detail and a summary total. Include assumptions, allowances, contingencies,
and exclusions. Submit a separate price form for each option you propose.

9.1 Option A — Comprehensive Repair (Lump Sum with Alternates)

.. Item ... . Description .g'Unit:éQtyé . PUr:::;{;Extendedi
Al ?3?90_1 area deck and deck equipment } | |
A2 PoolBasin B

A3 Waterslide and Drop Slides

A4 - ngooi Surge Tanks )

A5 ::;-Watel: Treatment Equipment (circulation &
_filtration) i

A6 Lightmg

A7 Blectrical Equipment N

A8 [Batbhouse&support | |

A9 ISite/Fencing




Ttem Lo . Description . Uthty PUmt Extended‘

A10 Accessibility

All N §SSafety & code _

AI?. _ ;Water/energy efﬁclency
Al3 - | Commissioning & training
Alt-1 |If needed by Proposer
Alt-2 If needed by Proposer
?Alt—3 If needed by Proposer
Alt-4 jﬂ” needed by Proposer

Total Optlon‘ $
A 1 : =

9.2 Option B — Phased Repair (GMP per Phase or Lump Sum per Phase)
Provide a phase breakdown:

Scope L GMP!Lump Allowances

.$.“.Pn_m?‘_!'y ‘5 _ ‘Sum Contmgency Notes}

;Phase 1 i ‘
;Phase 3
?Ph_ase 4
‘Phase 5

'Total (All f g
Phases) . ’ :

9.3 Option C — Demolition & Shovel-Ready Site

. Item 1 : R Descrlptum _ ?U.l__}_itszty:fUni_t Price, Extended
Cl S HazMat survey & abatement y I f i |
2 ; Demo_htu_)n & disposal |

C3 | Utility abandonment/recomnections

C4 i:Backﬁll compaction, grading

CS - _ Stormwater&E\&S controls it _

C6 R ‘Flnal survey & shovel-ready dehvembles _ - o .
Total Option C| o u $




9.4 Option D — Alternate Reuse (Concept-Level)

| _. Item - L ]_)_e_scr_ip'tiqn ' Uthty EI.’ric.e
DI o ;Concept design &_i‘epoz’t | .
D2 | 30% drawings & cost model
D3 \Permitting path out_iine_ o L |
Total Option D s

Additional Pricing Requirements:

e Provide a detailed schedule of values, hourly rate sheet, and markups (OH\&P, bonds,

insurance).
« |dentify contingency %, allowances, and assumed escalation.
e Provide lifecycle cost and O\&M cost estimates for Options A, B, and D over 10 and 20

years.

10. Evaluation & Selection

The City Council will determine if any of the proposals received are in the best interest of the
Community.

The City may establish a shortlist, conduct interviews, request Best and Final Offers (BAFQs), and
negotiate scope and price.

11. Schedule (Anticipated)

e |ssue RFP: [Date]

¢ Pre-Proposal Meeting/Site Visit: [Date]

+ Questions Due: [Date]

+ Addendum (Final Q\&A): [Date]

¢ Proposals Due: [Date]

e Shortlist/Interviews (if any): [Date]

¢ Notice of Intent to Award: [Date]

» Council/Board Approval (if required). [Date]
» Notice to Proceed: [Date]

Dates are approximate and subject to change.




12. Additional Requirements

e Coordination: Maintain operations of adjacent facilities; noise/dust/vibration controls; work
hour restrictions [times].

e Utilities & Outages: Coordinate shutdowns at least [X] days in advance.

e Submittals: Product data, shop drawings, samples, test reports.

e Record Documents: As-builts (CAD/PDF), asset registry, equipment schedules, serials,

warranty matrix.
e Training: Onsite training sessions and manuals for staff; video recordings if requested.

e Cyber/Controls: If using connected controls, comply with City cybersecurity standards
[attach if any].

13. Submission Certification

By submitting a proposal, the Offeror certifies it has examined the RFP, site, and conditions; that the
proposal is made without collusion; and that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

Signature (to be included with Price Forms)

Firm:
Authorized Representative:
Title:
Date:
Email/Phone:

Optional: Short Add-Alternate Language You Can
Include

e Seasonal Operations Priority: "City preference is to keep the pool open for [season];
propose schedule/workarounds to minimize downtime.”

o Energy & Water Targets: “Identify measures with simple payback under 5 years; provide
incentives/rebates strategy.”



» Local/Equity Goals: “Proposals that include local subcontracting, workforce development, or
DBE participation plans will be viewed favorably.”




